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The Allen County Public Library
is a service institution. It seeks to
inform, educate, and culturally enrich
the entire community by providing
books and other library materials,
facilities, and professional services

for free use by all residents.




é ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

ACPL 900 Library Plaza » Fort Wayne, Indiana 46802 ¢ Greta K. Southard, Director

July 19, 2021
To the Citizens of Allen County and the Trustees of the ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY:

As Treasurer of the Allen County Public Library (Library), I am pleased to submit to you the
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Library, a component unit of Allen County,
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. This CAFR is presented in conformity with generally

accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to units of government.

Responsibility for both the accuracy of the presented data and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the Library. To the best of our knowledge the
enclosed information is accurate in all material respects and will enable the citizens of Allen County to

gain a fuller understanding of the financial affairs of the Library.

The Library is required to undergo an annual single audit of its federal assistance programs in
conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the 1996 Amendments and the
U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133 Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-
Profit Organizations. Information related to this single audit and the independent auditor’s reports on
the internal controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations are presented in a separately

issued document.
THE REPORTING ENTITY

This report includes all funds of the Library and its component units. The Library is established under
the laws of the State of Indiana. It is governed by a seven-member Board of Trustees appointed by
various bodies of elected officials. Two trustees are appointed by the Allen County Commissioners.
Two trustees are appointed by the Allen County Council. Two trustees are appointed by the Fort
Wayne Community Schools. One trustee is appointed by three other school districts acting together.
These three districts are: East Allen County Schools, Northwest Allen County Schools, and Southwest



Allen County Schools. Each trustee is appointed to a four-year term and the terms are staggered so

no more than two terms expire in any year. The Board levies its own taxes, adopts its own resolutions
having the effect of local law governing library matters, and issues its own general obligation debt.
The appointments are non-authoritative in nature with no continuing linkage between the various
appointing authorities and the appointees. Current legislation now requires that if the percentage
increase of a subsequent year expense budget is greater than the State determined amount property
tax assessment may increase over the previous year, the budget must be reviewed and approved by the
appropriate fiscal body. In the library’s case, this fiscal body is the Allen County Council. Because of
this fiscal dependency and accountability, as well as the fact that the County appoints the majority of
the trustees, the library is considered a component unit of Allen County. The boundaries of the taxing

district are effectively defined to include all of Allen County, Indiana.

For financial reporting purposes, under GASB 14 the Library is an “other stand-alone government”.
An entity of this type applies the provisions of GASB 14 as if it were a primary government. The
financial data of two component units have been included based on criteria established by GAAP. The
Allen County Public Library Building Corporation is reported as a blended component unit based

on the existence of the special financing relationship with the Library. It was created by the Library
Board of Trustees for the sole purpose of financing library buildings and improvements. The Allen
County Public Library Foundation is included based on the ability of the Library trustees to appoint
a voting majority of the Foundation board and create at least the appearance of control and financial
benefit. The Foundation exists for the benefit of the Library and is reported as a discretely presented

component unit.

The Library system serves a population of approximately 382,000 residents of Allen County. In
addition, many residents of neighboring communities as well as persons from throughout the United
States and Canada visit our facilities each year. The Library operates a main library, thirteen branches
and the Data Center which houses the Information Technology Services and Technical Services
departments. The main library, nine branches, and the Data Center are located within the City of Fort

Wayne while four branches are located in other cities and towns.

ECONOMIC CONDITION

The Library district is located in northeastern Indiana, approximately 125 miles northeast of

Indianapolis. Fort Wayne is the second largest city in the state and serves as an economic hub for the
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area. The economy is diverse as exhibited by the lists of principal employers and principal taxpayers
in the statistical section. Unemployment rates are in-line with national averages but the cost of living
remains comparatively modest. Allen County is the largest county in the state in terms of area. The
west central part of the county is dominated by the City of Fort Wayne with about 2/3 of the county’s
population. The eastern half of the county is largely agricultural with several small towns. General
Motors located a state-of-the-art light truck plant in the southwestern part of the county in the mid-
80’s that generates considerable economic impetus from related activities. As with many mid-west
communities that have had a traditional manufacturing base, there has been a steady movement
towards more intellectual and service oriented industries and the outlook for the future looks to be
stable with continued modest growth. For quite a few years, the assessed valuation for the county
grew consistently in the two to five percent range. New home construction has traditionally been
strong enough in the suburban areas surrounding Fort Wayne to more than offset assessed valuation
decreases in our urban areas. In 2003, though, the State implemented a new valuation method that
essentially reassessed all real property at a market based value. This resulted in a 42% jump in the
assessed value for real property in Allen County. In 2004, further State legislation went into effect
which removed personal property from the assessed value figures. The result of this change was a
1.9% decrease in total Allen County assessed value from 2004 to 2005. For the years 2005 through
2008, economic and housing growth patterns returned to an upward movement with 2008 showing an
approximate increase in assessed values of 3.8%. During the heart of the 2009 economic recession the
region was hit hard resulting in record high unemployment rates, income losses, and an approximate
16.1% decrease in assessed values. However, starting in 2010 and continuing for a nine-year stretch
thru 2019, the economy and the assessed values had steady upward growth. As with all of the United
States, the 2020 COVID-19 pandemic brought a dramatic downturn to the economy of Indiana and

the Allen County region with peak unemployment rates hitting close to 20% in April of that year.
However, Indiana, being a predominantly manufacturing based State was able to rebound from this
recession very quickly with current State and regional forecasts showing Indiana will, by December
of 2021, be back to the financial position it was at the end of 2019. In fact, total assessed values for the
County in 2020 increased by a robust 6.8%.

MAJOR INITIATIVES

The Library is a service institution. It seeks to inform, educate, and culturally enrich the entire
community by providing books and other library materials, facilities, technology connectivity, and

professional services for free use by all residents. Meeting the information needs of our constituency
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is an ongoing challenge. An already busy library system continues to become progressively busier.

In 2004, a milestone was achieved when total circulation surpassed the five-million mark. However,
growth keeps accelerating with the six-million circulation mark reached by the end of 2007, seven-
million reached in 2009, and eight-million by 2011. By the end of 2013, 10 million circulations and
2015 brought the highest circulation number of over 13.7 million. Since 2015, the impact of digital
format borrowing, such as e-books and video/music downloads, continues to alter how the library
customers use the materials by reducing the actual borrowings of materials and increasing the
accessing of electronic sources. During 2020, the COVID-19 pandemic impacts resulted in dramatic
changes to the library operations. The Library was forced to close to all patrons for approximately 3
months and then to operate under restricted access and service levels for the remainder of the year.
As such, circulation totals that in 2019 were over 10.3 million items dropped to just 3.15 million items
in 2020. The Allen County Public Library continues to rank in the top ten in system-wide circulation
per capita and is consistently rated as one of the premier public libraries in the nation by numerous
national public library rating groups. The Convention and Visitors Bureau continues to name the
Allen County Public Library as one of the top tourist attractions in Northeast Indiana. The Library’s
Fred J. Reynolds Historical Genealogy Department collection continues to garner top rankings for
genealogical research. The collection, which is the largest of any public library, is the second largest

genealogy library in the world.

Starting in the mid-1980s a number of initiatives and projects have greatly influenced the way we
serve our public. 1986 marked the kickoff of a library automation project that placed all of our
circulation activity and substantially all of our card catalog holdings on an automated system. In
late 1990 we began using the circulation side of the system with staff use of the catalog. In August
1991, we took that step that will forever change the relationship between our public and the Library’s
holdings when we opened for public use the Online Public Access Catalog (OPAC) giving patrons access
to more than 3.5 million computer-stored information items by end of 2006. Now a patron in any of
our 14 buildings could know the availability of any item in any other facility and have it delivered

to the location of their choice. In April of 1992 we implemented dial-up access to the OPAC. Now
from the comfort of home or office, or actually anywhere one can access the Internet, our worldwide
patrons can search our catalog. In 1994 we established our own link with the Internet, and in 1995
we were an integral part of a cooperative effort to establish a Fort Wayne Area InfoNet. In October
1995 our first public access Internet workstations were installed at the Main Library and today over
800 workstations are available to the public for internet and other technology services throughout

the library system and in 2006 we implemented wireless connectivity throughout our library system.
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Finally, in 2018, the Library began the conversion process to a new automated integrated library
system (OCLC-WISE) to replace the current system from the 1990’s. The new WISE system integrates
a comprehensive set of library management tools, from collection management to marketing, and
offers the library customer greater capabilities to enhance their library experience. The conversion to
the new WISE system was completed by late 2019.

In 1989 we embarked on a capital improvement project that touched all of our fourteen facilities

and took nearly three years to complete. We expanded into two fast-growing parts of the district by
building two new branches, Aboite and Dupont. At that point, these quickly became our second and
third busiest branches. We demolished and replaced our Tecumseh branch, doubled the size of our New
Haven branch, relocated our Woodburn branch and renovated to some extent every building in the

system. Wheelchair accessibility was a significant provision in each renovation.

In 1996, we expanded the size of Dupont Branch (new in 1990) by approximately 50% and added online

service capacity.

In 1997, a space planning study began with the goal of ensuring that the Allen County Public Library
facilities have adequate space to serve our community at the highest standard of excellence for at

least the next twenty years. By the end of the year 2000, substantially all of the initial studies and
preliminary engineering investigations were completed with the goal being to replace six existing
branches with new buildings, renovate and expand five other branches and the main library, add a new
data center to house all systems and technical services functions, and make appropriate improvements

at all other branches to ensure that they are designed and equipped to provide optimal service.

The plans for this multi-million dollar project were unveiled to the public in April of 2001. This was
followed by 15 public open-house meetings throughout the county over the next 6 weeks to gather
public opinion and input on the proposed project. After successfully completing the Indiana State
petition process used for public debt issues, the first bonds were issued in December of 2001 in the
amount of $11,445,000. A second series of bonds in the amount of $34,000,000 was issued in May of
2002 and a third series was issued in December of 2003 in the amount of $12,480,000. The final series
of bonds were issued in June of 2004 in the amount of $31,470,000.



The Library has taken advantage of favorable interest rates three times since the expansion related
bonds were issued in order to lower the total outstanding debt. The first refinancing took place in 2005
when the Library refinance $31,040,000 of 2002 first mortgage bonds which resulted in a net savings
of over $1.4 million in bond debt service payments to the taxpayers of Allen County. In 2012, favorable
interest rates allowed the Library to refinance a portion ($9,375,000) of the 2003 first mortgage bonds
and save the taxpayers an additional $283,000 over the next (final) three years of bond payments.
Finally, in 2016 the Library refinanced $29,375,000 of 2005 first mortgage bonds which resulted in

saving the taxpayers over $2.7 million on the remaining six years of bond payments.

After nearly ten years from start to finish, the grand opening ceremonies for Main Library were held
in January 2007 and brought to a conclusion this multi-year expansion program that has dramatically

enhanced the library facilities, as well as, the offerings and experiences for our patrons.

1992 marked the adoption of the first formal strategic plan for the Library. Many hours of staff work
resulted in the adoption of a document that helped guide the Library for the next 25 years as it was
reviewed and revised annually. In 2017 the Library embarked on the development of a new strategic
plan that will guide decision making well into the 21st century. The plan is designed to be more of a
living document, rather than a static model, allowing modifications and enhancements as demographic,
economic, and social changes occur in our service area. The four main focus areas of the plan center
around (1) promoting a culture of collaboration, leadership, and learning (2) enhancing community
awareness and engagement (3) focusing on the library as a place that is welcoming with easy-to-use
environments (4) providing innovative and adaptable content and services. 2004 marked the completion
of a 10 year capital expenditure plan designed to guide the purchase, replacement, and repairs of the
various capital assets of the Library. This plan is also reviewed and updated annually to ensure that all

information and expenditure amounts are current and able to be funded with available resources.

As knowledge and information continue to grow exponentially, and more information is stored in
remote, decentralized databanks, the average citizen is in danger of being cut off from many vital
information sources. The Library is committed to giving our citizens access to knowledge and
information in all forms, including sophisticated electronic media. The library collection not only
includes the collection of books, government documents, magazines, sound recordings, books on tape,
pamphlets, downloadable audio and e-books, and more, but also offers a host of electronic information
data bases and other similar products. Our goal is to ensure that all residents of Allen County have

access to needed information resources regardless of his or her ability to pay.
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In 2009, the Lincoln Financial Foundation gave the collection from the Lincoln Museum of Fort
Wayne, valued at over $20 million, to the State of Indiana. In turn, the State selected the Allen
County Public Library for the two dimensional objects and the Indiana State Museum for the three
dimensional objects. The research collection, entitled the “Lincoln Collection in Indiana”, is now
housed at the Allen County Public Library. The collection is considered an incomparable repository
and resource for information on the life and legacy of Abraham Lincoln and is extensively used by
authors, scholars, TV producers, educators, students, Lincoln enthusiasts, and the general public.
In addition, the more than twenty thousand books and pamphlets, thousands of photographs, the
extensive genealogical collections on the Hanks and Lincoln families, and other Lincoln-related
documents, including many written or signed by Lincoln, are being digitized. While this digitization
project will take a number of years to complete, many items have already been made available for on-

line access.

In 2020, the Allen County Public Library, along with the Friends of the Lincoln Collection of Indiana,
began work to create the Rolland Center for Lincoln Research. The Center is scheduled to open July
2021 in the Main Library and will highlight the thousands of amazing items in the Lincoln Collection
through a combination of physical displays of the collection as well as digital interactive displays.
This will not be a typical museum experience. Instead, technology will be used in such a way that
individuals of varying abilities, ages, and knowledge levels will be able to fully engage with the
Collection. In addition, the Center will also incorporate an expert-in-residence program. That expert
may be a scholar, artist, or someone else who works with the materials in the Collection to further an

understanding of Lincoln.

The Allen County Public Library is constantly striving to identify the ever-changing needs of our
patrons and evolve our services to meet those needs. Libraries have traditionally been the repository
of all forms of knowledge items such as books, magazines, databases, etc. and have been compared to
a “supermarket” of knowledge. However, in recent years, we have adopted the view that perhaps the
library should also contain aspects of a “kitchen” where not only are there ingredients, but also access

to tools and other resources which can be utilized to create something with all this knowledge.

To that end, since 2012 the Library has been a leading local “maker space” provider, offering our
patrons access to, and demonstrations of, high-tech sophisticated tools and software which would
typically be too costly for an individual to afford. In 2014 the library completed constructing two

“maker labs”, one at the Main Library and one at the Georgetown branch. These labs contain a
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sampling of maker equipment such as 3-D printers, vinyl cutters, sewing apparatuses, audio and

visual recording and editing equipment which patrons can use to turn their ideas into tangible items.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Internal Controls. The management of the Library is responsible for establishing and maintaining
an internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of the Library are protected from loss,
theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation
of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. The internal
control structure is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that these objectives
are met. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that: (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived; and (2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates
and judgments by management. In compliance with State directives, in 2016 the entire staff of the
Library received training on internal controls and all new employees are required to complete this

same training as part of their onboarding process.

Budgetary Controls. Budgetary controls are maintained in accordance with state statutes that require
that funds be first appropriated before being expended. These controls relate to funds that receive tax
revenue, currently the General Operating Fund, the Debt Service Fund, and Library Improvement
Revolving Fund (LIRF), the Rainy Day Fund, and the Levy Excess Fund. When there are capital
projects funds, those are budgeted on a project-length basis rather than an annual basis. The Library
Board has the authority to transfer appropriations between major categories, or between lines within
major categories, in the budget without seeking the approval of the Department of Local Government
Finance (formerly the State Board of Tax Commissioners). In the event additional appropriations

are needed during the year, and the Library can demonstrate there are funds available to support
additional appropriations, the Library can apply to the Department of Local Government Finance for
additional appropriations. The annual budgetary process as prescribed by Indiana law is as follows:
Management prepares a budget resolution for action by the Board of Trustees in August. The budget is
legally advertised and a public hearing is held in mid-September. The Board approves the budget in late
September and it is then submitted to the Department of Local Government Finance who subsequently
holds a final budget hearing between November and the end of year. The final budget order is then issued
by December 31st. As mentioned previously, only if a requested budget exceeds the allowable State
determined growth factor in property taxes over the previous year does this process then incorporate a

review and approval by the Allen County Council which serves as the county fiscal body to the library.
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Revenues. Libraries are heavily dependent on tax revenue. User fees, mainly from overdue fines,
photocopying, and other miscellaneous revenues cannot be realistically expected to significantly
reduce the tax dependency. The Library receives funding from auto and commercial vehicle excise
taxes that are distributed based on the Library’s portion of property tax levy relative to other local
units. However, property taxes are the main funding source for the Library representing over 74% of
the total general fund revenue budget in 2020. The Library has been under the effect of state-imposed
property tax control mechanisms since 1973. Until 2002, the operative control was a standard five
percent maximum increase on the property tax levy. However, in 2002, the Indiana General Assembly
changed the maximum levy increase calculation to be based upon the 6-year average growth in
state-wide non-farm personal income. While the legislature did include provisions allowing taxing
entities in higher than average growth areas to apply for a special levy appeal, the effect of this
change causes the of maximum amount of property tax levy an entity can collect to fluctuate with the
economic conditions of the state. In 2007 the General Assembly passed legislation, which subsequently
became an amendment to the Indiana Constitution in 2010, placing further restrictions on property
tax collections by incorporating caps on the total amount of property tax that can be collected

from property owners based on a percentage of their assessed property values. As mentioned in the
Economic Conditions section, the recession has caused a significant decrease in the assessed values

of real property in the library taxing district. The result is that as property values decrease, the caps
on how much tax can be collected become more and more significant. The amount of uncollectible
property tax revenue due to the caps was approximately $2.38 million in 2020. That figure is currently
estimated to decrease to approximately $2.099 million in 2021 and then to continue to decrease in
2022 to approximately $1.9 million as strong property values in the county offset budget growths.
While property values continue to grow, the Library must continue to take adequate steps to ensure a
balanced budget for the upcoming years. As such, the effects of these caps will continue to restrict the

delivery of programs and services.

The Common Council of the City of Fort Wayne controls local county income tax decisions because the
City has more than half of the total population of Allen County. In 2016, the total local income tax
rate of 1.35% was distributed as 0.6% for general certified shares (where the Library’s portion of the
income tax collection comes from), 0.4% for economic development initiatives, 0.25% for property tax

relief, and 0.1% dedicated to funding public safety operations and initiatives.

Fund Balances. Because property tax revenues are received late in each six-month period while

expenditures are spread more evenly over the period, it is usually necessary for entities to enter
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the short-term debt market in order to pay for current operating expenditures. However, the policy
of the Library is to maintain sufficient balances in the combined General, Rainy Day, and Library
Improvement Reserve (LIRF) funds to meet the expenditure needs during these six-month periods.
This balance, combined with other miscellaneous revenue receipts and good cash and investment
management practices, has allowed the library to avoid any short-term cash flow borrowings for over

20 years.

The fund balance in the Debt Service fund at December 31st is adequate to service the payments that
are due in January. Tax receipts during the first six months of the year are expected to be adequate
to cover the July debt payments. The fund balance in the special revenue funds are related to the
Cable Access Television fund, the Gift fund, the Rainy Day fund, and the Levy Excess fund. The fund
balance in the Capital Projects fund represents the Library Improvement Reserve Fund (LIRF). The
nature of the LIRF fund is that it serves as a reserve for expenditures of a capital nature not provided
for in the general fund. In addition, because recent changes in State legislation makes the issuance

of debt more difficult for taxing entities, maintenance and reasonable construction will likely use
funding within LIRF rather than bonding. No authority in state statute exists for a separate tax levy

for this fund, so this fund may only increase by transferring money from the General fund.

Pensions. The Library does not manage any pension trust funds. Library employees participate

in the Public Employees Retirement Fund (PERF), part of the statewide Indiana Public Employee
Retirement System (INPRS). Employees contribute three percent of gross wages and the Library
contributes an actuarially determined amount (11.2% for 2020). Under state law, a governmental unit
may choose to pay the employee portion, and the Library has elected to pay that portion. Both the

employee and employer contributions are remitted to INPRS on a per-payroll basis.

Risk Management. In 2010, it was decided that (beginning in 2011) for cost savings and control
purposes, the Library would fund its group health costs and related services, such as reinsurance,
administrative fees, etc. through a self-funding process. With this type of structure, instead

of purchasing a group health insurance policy from an insurance provider and paying monthly
premiums, the Library sets aside revenues generated from both employer and employee assessments
into a separate fund and pays for the related costs directly from those funds. This fund was
established in 2011 as an internal service fund (proprietary) and the net position in this fund
represents the net revenues over expenses at the end of the year. The long-term goal of this self-

insurance fund is to increase the fund balance to a point where sufficient available funds exist to allow
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stable employee premium assessments rather than having those assessments subject to the volatility
inherent with health care cost. To that end, at the end of 2020, the library is maintaining that goal by

having a net position of the fund equaling approximately 168% of expected operating costs.

Please refer to the Management Discussion and Analysis for further information about various
aspects of the Library’s financial activities for 2020 including analysis of assets, revenues,
expenditures, capital projects, debt administration, and risk management. In addition, the notes to the
financial statements, which follow the combined financial statements, contain additional information

and are an integral part of the statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

Independent Audit. In 2020, the Library was audited by Crowe LLP. Their report is included in the
financial section of this report. The Allen County Public Library Foundation (a discretely presented
component unit) is audited by the accounting firm of Dulin, Ward, & DeWald, Inc. Crowe LLP relied

on the work of the other auditors in issuing their opinion.

Certificate of Achievement. The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States

and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to
Allen County Public Library for its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year
ended December 31, 2019. This is the twenty eighth consecutive year that the Allen County Public
Library has achieved this prestigious award. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement,

a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual
financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. This report must satisfy both

generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current
comprehensive annual financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement program

requirements, and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

Acknowledgements. The preparation of the comprehensive annual financial report on a timely basis
was made possible by the dedicated service of the staff of the financial services department and
several other members of the ACPL staff. Each of these persons has our sincere appreciation for the

contributions made in the preparation and publication of the report.
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We would also like to thank the staff of the Crowe LLP for their invaluable assistance in the

preparation of this report in a timely manner.

Special thanks are extended to the Board of Library Trustees for their continued support and

encouragement.
Sincerely,
[ 2.0 S

David K. Sedestrom

Chief Financial Officer/Treasurer
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Crowe

Crowe LLP

Independent Member Crowe Global

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Those Charged with Governance
Allen County Public Library
Allen County, Indiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the discretely
presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Allen
County Public Library (Library), a component unit of Allen County, Indiana, as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2020, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Library's basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not
audit the financial statements of the Allen County Public Library Foundation which represents the
entire discretely presented component unit. Those statements were audited by other auditors whose
report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for the
Allen County Public Library Foundation is based solely on the report of the other auditors. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Library's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Library's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.




Opinions

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, the discretely presented component unit, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Library, as of December 31, 2020, and the respective changes in financial position
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof, and for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management's Discussion and Analysis, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - General Fund, Schedule
of Proportionate Share Net Pension Liabilities and Related Ratios, and Schedule of Employer
Contributions, as listed in the Table of Contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Library's basic financial statements. The accompanying Introductory Section,
Combining Balance Sheet, Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Other Budgeted Major Governmental Funds, and
Statistical Section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements.

The Combining Balance Sheet, Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances, and Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Other Budgeted Major Governmental Funds
are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has
been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements them-selves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by us and other auditors.




In our opinion, and the report of other auditors, the Combining Balance Sheet, Combining Statement
of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances, and Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Other Budgeted Major Governmental Funds are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

The Introductory Section and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion

or provide any assurance on it.

Crowe LLP

Indianapolis, Indiana
July 19, 2021
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As management of the Allen County Public Library (the Library), we offer the following discussion as
insight into the financial performance of the Library for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2020. To
obtain a better understanding of the Library’s financial position, this discussion and analysis should
be read in conjunction with our letter of transmittal, the basic financial statements, the notes to the

basic financial statements, as well as required supplementary and other supplementary information.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The assets and deferred outflows of the Library exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows at

the end of 2020 by $92.7 million (total net position), an increase of $10.2 million over the 2019
amount of $82.5 million. This was made up of $11.8 million in restricted position, $26.1 million

of unrestricted position, and $54.8 million of net investment in capital assets. The restricted
position amounts are primarily $5.7 million designated for debt service, $3.6 million in the Library
Improvement Reserve Fund (LIRF) which is used to ensure the proper upkeep and maintenance of
all library facilities, and $2.5 million in various Special Revenue funds. The unrestricted position

is used to support the Library’s day-to-day operations.

The net $10.2 million increase in total net position is the result of total liabilities and deferred
inflows decreasing by $6 million while total assets plus deferred outflows increased by $4.2 million.
The $6 million decrease is due primarily from total liabilities decreasing by $6.2 million being
offset by deferred inflows increasing by $205k. The $6.2 million decrease in total liabilities was
almost entirely due to liabilities related to the first mortgage debt decreasing $5.94 million as

a result of scheduled payments and amortizations on first mortgage bonds. Other liability lines
showing decreases include the actuarially determined pension liability provided by the State which
decreased by $602k, trade accounts payable which decreased by $55k and interest payable lines
decreasing by $29k due to the corresponding decrease in the first mortgage bond debt. Unearned
revenues, relating to undistributed income taxes held by the State at year-end, showed an increase
of $167k while liabilities relating to compensated absences also increased by $86k. Finally, payroll
related payables at year end increased by $129k. The net $205k increase in deferred inflows of
resources is the result of State pension related inflows (State determined) increasing by $281k
while gains on bond refunding from normal amortization adjustments decreased by $76k. The

above items account for the total change in of $6.0 million in total liabilities and deferred inflows.
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As mentioned above, total assets and deferred outflows had an overall increase of $4.2 million
that is a result of total assets increasing by $3.73 million while deferred outflow increased by
$423k. The change in total assets is a result of increases in all non-capital lines of $6.15m being
offset by capital assets deceasing $2.42m. Of the $6.15m increase in non-capital assets, Cash

and cash equivalents was the primary source of the change, showing an increase of $5.5 million
due to revenues exceeding expenses in the General fund ($4.9 million) and Self-Insurance fund
($1.4 million) being somewhat offset by decreases in the Debt Service funds ($625k) and Other
Non-major funds ($167k). The General fund excess was due the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic
impacting expenses but not revenues. Property tax collections were stable and saw no significant
increase in uncollectable amounts. Since income tax distributions were actually from collections
remitted to the State from 2019, these 2020 distribution saw no impacts from the pandemic
unemployment levels. In addition. and as in the previous year, there was another supplemental
income tax distribution causing this line to show a $1 million increase over 2019. The pandemic did
result in the Library being closed to all patrons for approximately 3 months and operating under
restricted access and service levels for the remainder of the year resulting in operating expenses
being lower than budgeted. As in prior years, the Self- Insurance fund excess was due to claims for
services being much lower than anticipated. Finally, and as in 2019, the capital assets decreased
by $2.4 million from depreciation charges. Deferred outflows of resources showed an increase of
$423k from pension related deferrals from the State. The remaining changes in total assets and
deferred outflows were the result of increases in property tax and excise tax receivables ($344k),
intergovernmental receivable for undistributed income taxes ($156k) and other miscellaneous

receivables and prepaid expenses increasing a total of $174k.

At the end of 2020, the Library’s governmental funds reported a combined ending fund balance
of $36.9 million, a $4 million increase over 2019’s balance of $32.9 million. This was primarily
due to the General Fund balance increasing by $4.8 million due to a combination of higher than
expected revenues as well as significant cost savings in both compensation other operating costs.
This increase was offset by decreases in both the Debt Service fund balances (Bond and Interest
Redemption Fund and the ACPL Building Corporation Fund) of $625k and the other non-major

governmental funds balances ($124Kk) to account for the total $4 million increase.

Of the $36.9 million fund balance in the governmental funds, $25.1 million is attributable to the
General Fund while $5.67 million is attributable to the debt service funds used for outstanding

bonds payments. The Library Improvement Reserve Fund (LIRF) balance represents $3.64 million
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of the total while the Other Non-Major Governmental Funds, predominantly the Rainy Day ($2
million), Cable TV ($241k), and Gift ($216k) funds accounts for the remaining $2.51 million.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is an introduction to the Library’s basic financial statements which are
comprised of three components: government-wide financial statements, fund financial statements,
and notes to the financial statements. In addition to the basic financial statements this Comprehensive

Annual Financial Report includes other supplementary information along with a statistical section.

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements present the
financial picture of the Library from the economic resources measurement focus using the accrual
basis of accounting, in a manner similar to private-sector businesses. The government-wide financial
statements are composed of two statements: the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of

Activities.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Library’s assets and liabilities, with
the difference between the two reported as total net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net

position will show the fluctuation in the Library’s financial position.

The Statement of Activities presents information on all of the Library’s revenues and expenses,
showing how the government’s general expenses less the program revenues equal net expenses for the
most recent fiscal year. General revenues are then subtracted from net expenses to get the change in
net position. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when
the cash is received or paid. Thus, revenue and expenses reported in this statement for some items

will only result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused

vacation leave).

In many governmental entities, both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish
functions that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental
activities) from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs
through user fees and charges (business-type activities). In the case of the Library, all of the functions
are considered governmental activities and include Public Services, Administration, and Interest on

long-term debt.



The government-wide financial statements include not only the Library itself (primary government)
but also a legally separate unit, the Allen County Public Library Foundation, for which the Library is
financially accountable. Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the
financial information presented for the primary government itself. The financial statements for this
component unit can be found in their entirety on file in the Library Financial Manager’s office at 900
Library Plaza, PO Box 2270, Fort Wayne, Indiana 46801. The Allen County Public Library Building
Corporation is legally separate from the Library, but since its nature and relationship with the Library
is significant, it is an integral part of the primary government. The government-wide financial

statements can be found on pages 23-24 of this report.

Fund financial statements. A fund is a fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts recording cash and other financial resources, with its related liabilities, and corresponding
equity balances. Some funds are required to be established by State Law and by bond covenants,
while others are adopted to help control monies set aside for a specific purpose. The Library, like
other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with
finance-related legal requirements. The funds of the Library can be divided into three categories:

governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary funds.

Governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for most of the Library’s basic services.
These funds generally do not provide enough revenue to completely cover their expenses; therefore,
they need taxes, fees, interest or any other intergovernmental revenue to help support them. These
funds use the modified accrual method of accounting, which measures cash and all other financial
assets that can readily be converted to cash. Governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of unrestricted resources, as well as on balances of unrestricted resources
available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing requirements. The differences of results in the governmental fund financial
statements to those in the government-wide financial statements are explained in a reconciliation
following each governmental fund financial statement. The basic governmental fund financial

statements can be found on pages 25-28 of this report.

Proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are used by a governmental unit when fees or charges are
assessed, either to outside customers or departments within the governmental unit, in order to cover
the entire cost of an operation. There are two types of proprietary funds: enterprise funds and internal

service funds. Enterprise funds are used to account for business-type activities, such as utilities, and
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are reported in the government-wide financial statements. Internal service funds are used to report
activities that provide services and supplies to other departments of the governmental unit and are
reported within the governmental activities section of the government-wide financial statements. The
Library does not report any enterprise funds but does utilize an internal service fund to account for
its group health insurance services. The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on

pages 29-31 of this report.

Fiduciary funds. Fiduciary funds are funds held by a governmental unit as an agent or a trustee.

They are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those
funds are not available to support the Library’s own programs. The Library holds one type of fiduciary
fund, referred to as a custodial fund, which is used to account for transactions and monies held by the
Library for an external party. The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 32-
33 of this report.

Notes to the financial statements. The notes are a required part of the basic financial statements that
provide necessary information for the understanding of the Library’s financial report. The notes to

the financial statements can be found on pages 37-68 of this report.

Other information. The Library is also required to provide more detailed information about certain
issues disclosed in required supplementary information (RSI) schedules. The Library’s RSI schedule
includes the Budgetary Comparison Schedule for the General Fund as well as notes to the RSI. The
combining financial statements for the non-major governmental and non-major special revenue funds
are found immediately following the RSI schedule and notes to the RSI listed above. The RSI schedule
can be found on pages 70-73 of this report.
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Allen County Public Library

Net Position
Governmental Activities Component Unit
2020 2019 2020 2019
Current and other assets $ 47,652,088 $ 41,499,994 $ 21,125,317 $ 21,614,084
Capital assets 62,608,705 65,024,185 - -
Total Assets 110,260,793 106,524,179 $ 21,125,317 $ 21,614,084
Deferred outflows of resources $ 1,151,805 $ 728,391 $ - $
Long-term liabilities outstanding $ 10,285,518 $ 15,949,570 $ - $
Other Liabilities 6,824,923 7,405,585 -
Total Liabilities 17,110,441 23,355,155 $ - $
Deferred inflows of resources $ 1,551,371 $ 1,346,606 $ - $
Net position $ 92,750,786 $ 82,550,809 $ 21,125,317 $ 21,614,084
Net invested in capital assets $ 54,838,096 $ 51,235,770 $ - $ -
Restricted 11,819,098 12,568,235 14,569,988 14,986,236
Unrestricted 26,093,592 18,746,804 6,555,329 6,627,848
Total net position $ 92,750,786 $ 82,550,809 $ 21,125,317 $ 21,614,084

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The Library’s (primary government) assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities and
deferred inflows by $92.7 million at the close of 2020, an increase over 2019’s figure of $82.5 million,
providing a solid equity base to build upon. The Library’s overall 2020 total net position increased

by $10.2 million from 2019 as total liabilities and deferred inflows decreased by $6 million while

total assets plus deferred outflows increased by $4.2 million. Long-term liabilities decreased by a
total of $5.7 million as $5.3 million in scheduled debt payments on outstanding first mortgage bonds
combined with a $602k decrease in the net pension liability were slightly offset by increases of $167k
in unearned revenue (income taxes held by the State at year-end) and $72k in compensated absences
to account for the total change. Other liabilities decreased by $581k overall as the current portions of
bonds payable, along with the associated accrued interest payable, decreased by a combined $669k and
trade payable decreased by $55k. These decreases were offset by increases in payroll related payables
($129K) and the current portion of compensated absences ($14k). Deferred inflows showed a total
increase of $205k as State determined pension related deferred inflows increased by $281k and while

unamortized gains on bonds decreased by $77k due to normal amortization.
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As mentioned above, total assets plus deferred outflows had a combined increase of $4.2 million with
total assets increasing by $3.73 million while deferred outflows increased by $423k. Cash and other
assets showed an increase of $6.15 million with cash increasing by $5.5 million while receivables

and prepaid expenses showed increases totaling $674k. The total increase in cash was primarily

due to revenues exceeding expenses in the General fund causing cash to increase by $4.9 million

due to the impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic affecting expenses but not revenues. Property tax
collections were stable and saw no significant increase in uncollectable amounts. In addition, since
income tax distributions (the second largest revenue source for the Library) were actually from
collections remitted to the State from 2019, these 2020 distribution saw no impacts from the pandemic
unemployment levels. Finally, and as in the previous year, there was another supplemental income tax
distribution causing this line to show a $1 million increase over 2019. The pandemic did result in the
Library being closed to all patrons for approximately 3 months and operating under restricted access
and service levels for the remainder of the year resulting in operating expenses being lower than
budgeted. Besides the General fund cash increase, the cash in the Self-Insurance fund also increased
by $1.4 million as the fund again incurred lower medical claims than anticipated allowing revenues to
exceed expenses. Cash in the Debt Service and other funds decreased by $625k and $167k, respectively
due to normal fluctuations in revenues and spending. As in previous years, Capital Assets showed a
reduction of $2.4 million as $4.8 million in depreciation increases were netted against $2.4 million in
library material and machinery additions. Thus, the $2.4 million reduction in capital assets combined
with the $6.15 million increase in current and other assets resulted in the total asset change of $3.7
million from 2019 to 2020. Deferred outflows of resources increased by $423k solely from changes in
pension related deferrals amounts supplied by the State on pension funds they administer and control.
This increase of $423k combined with the $3.73 million increase in total assets accounts for the $4.2

million net increase.

From a Government-wide statements perspective, the assets of the Library are divided between cash/
other current assets and capital assets. The cash/other current assets of the Library totaled $47.7
million, an increase of $6.15 million over 2019 primarily from the cash and receivable items mentioned
in the above paragraphs. Total assets of the governmental funds amount to $41.2 million where $29.1
million (71%) reflects the current assets of the General Fund (unassigned funds of $24.7 million), $3.6
million (9%) reflects the current assets of the Library Improvement Reserve Fund (LIRF) (all restricted
funds), $6.6 million (14%) represent the amounts relating to the debt service on the capital expansion
and renovation program bonds (also all restricted), and the remaining $2.5 million (6%) are the current

assets in the Other Non-Major Governmental Funds (primarily the Rainy Day and Cable TV funds).
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The $63 million in capital assets ($54.8 million when netted against related debt) of the Library
represents land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment, and the library material
collection. These assets are designated as invested in capital assets because they are used to provide
the everyday services the patrons of the Library expect and are not liquid assets that are available for
future spending. Capital assets decreased by $2.4 million in 2020 as $2.4 million in library material
and equipment purchases were offset by $4.8 million increases in depreciation on these and other

capitalized assets such as buildings and equipment.

Liabilities for the library equaled $17.1 million at the end of 2020 of which approximately 60% of
them are classified as long-term. Total liabilities decreased by $6.24 million from 2019 as liabilities
associated with outstanding first mortgage bonds decreased by $5.9 million combined with decreases
in pension liabilities ($602k) and increases in unearned revenue ($167k) and miscellaneous changes in

the other liability amounts accounted for the total $6.24 million change.

When examining the Library’s total net position (total assets less total liabilities), the investment

in capital assets must reflect the investment less any debt used to acquire these assets that is still
outstanding. The debt associated with these capital assets must be paid from sources other than the
capital assets themselves because, as stated before, they cannot be used as a liquid asset. At the end of
2020, that net investment in capital assets amounted to $54.8 million, an increase of $3.6 million over
2019’s amount of $51.2 million. This increase is due to the reductions in the debt associated with these

assets being greater than the reductions in the values of the assets themselves from depreciation.

The remaining amounts making up the total net position of the Library are designated as either
restricted or unrestricted. The $11.8 million in restricted position are subject to external limitations
and cannot be spent on everyday operations. The unrestricted $26.1 million portion may be used by the

Library for normal operations of providing services to the patrons.

The Library’s component unit showed a total net position (assets exceeding liabilities) of $21.1 million
at the end of 2020. This total position reflects the cash and investments held by the Allen County
Public Library Foundation (ACPLF) and are used to help support various programs and collections of
the Library. The ACPLF has no capital assets or outstanding debt.
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Allen County Public Library
Changes in Net Position

Governmental Activities Component Unit
2020 2019 2020 2019

Revenues
Program Revenues

Charges for services $ 218,250 $ 432,468 $ - $ -

Operating grants and contributions 1,597,097 1,626,443 984,181 1,714,121
General Revenues

Property taxes 28,527,726 27,724,811 - -

Local income tax 5,191,940 3,893,083 - -

Shared revenues 2,577,863 2,602,088 - -

Interest on investments 193,459 597,795 - -

Other 860,240 1,205,563 - -
Total Revenues 39,166,575 38,082,251 984,181 1,714,121
Expenses

Administraion and support 9,744,183 9,171,842 - -

Public services 19,186,253 20,592,490 - -

Interest on long-term debt 36,162 96,380 - -

ACPLF - - 1,472,948 1,288,362
Total Expenses 28,966,598 29,860,712 1,472,948 1,288,362
Changes in total net position 10,199,977 8,221,539 (488,767) 425,759
Total net position - beginning 82,550,809 74,329,270 21,614,084 21,188,325
Total net position - ending $ 92,750,786 $ 82,550,809 $ 21,125,317 $ 21,614,084

Governmental Activities. Governmental Activities. The main source of funding for Library operations
continues to be the various taxes that account over 97% of the $37 million in general revenues with
property taxes being the primary tax source. Total revenues for governmental activities increased by
$1.1 million over 2019 (2.8%) due to a variety of increases and decreases in numerous revenue sources.
First examining the increases, which totaled $2.1 million for 2020, Property tax grew by $802k due
primarily to the State allowed maximum levy growth factor for both the General and Debt Service
funds levy. Local Income Taxes (LIT) showed the largest growth, $1.3 million (33%) from 2019. The
strong economy leading up to 2020 was the primary driver of this increase as these distributions

in 2020 came from collections taking place in 2019 before any of the pandemic economic downturn
would have impacted this revenue source. This strong growth would have accounted for approximately
$846k of the total increase but was also was the reason for another $453k Supplemental Income

Tax distribution. As happened in 2019, the State is required to issue a Supplemental Income Tax
distribution to localities when the amounts collected exceed the budgeted balance in the State accounts

by 15% or more. These two revenue sources account for the total $2.1 million in increases for 2020.
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Decreases the revenues totaled slightly more than $1 million and took place in a number of sources.
The largest two reductions were directly related to the pandemic economic impacts in 2020 as interest
rate yields on deposit accounts and investments dramatically dropped and facility closures and limited
operations restricted other revenue sources. Interest earnings saw a $404k (68%) drop from 2019 as
the yields on allowable investments, such as deposit accounts, money market deposits, and Treasury
instruments, were lowered by the Federal Reserve to almost 0% as they attempted to counter the
effects of the pandemic economic downturn. During 2020, the pandemic forced the library to close
facilities to all patron access for 3 months and then once opened, required restricted services levels

in order to comply with the various interaction protocols. In addition, in order to assist patrons
struggling with the pandemic economic fallout, many fines/overdue fees and collection assessments
were waived during the year. In addition, with facilities being closed, patrons continued the trend

of increasing their use of digital resources, such as e-books, streaming videos and music that also
resulted in less overdue fines and collection fees. As such, these revenues showed a $345k (29%)
decrease from 2019. Charges for Services were also affected by the facility use limitations as revenue
sources such as room rentals, parking revenues, and printing/copying revenues showed a $214k

(50%) reduction. Slight decreases in Shared revenue ($24k), which are primarily vehicle excise taxes
and Operating grants ($29k) account for the remaining sources which decreased in total program

revenues.

Overall, the expenses for governmental activities showed a net decrease of $894k in 2020. As have

been discussed previously, the closure of the library facilities and the curtailing of services once they
reopened resulted in a total $1.406 million decrease in Public Services expenses. During the year, the
library was able to maintain staffing levels as employees were reassigned to other duties if their normal
assignments could not be performed due to the pandemic limitations. As such, Administrative expense
increased by $572k as normal cost of living increases of $428k and expenses relating building systems
and maintenance increased by $561k and were partially offset by applicable less medical related claims
in the self-insurance fund of $417k. Interest on long-term debt decreased by $60k (62.4%) due to interest
charges decreasing as the 2016 bond debt is reduced through normal amortization amounts. The changes
in Public Services ($1.406 million decrease), Administrative ($572k increase), and Interest ($60k

decrease) account for the total decrease in governmental activities of $894k.
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FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE GOVERNMENT’S FUNDS

As noted earlier, the Library uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with

finance-related legal requirements.

Governmental funds. The Library’s fund financial statements use modified accrual accounting
providing information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of available resources. This
provides the reader with useful information regarding the Library’s financial position. The
unreserved fund balance of the Library’s governmental funds provides good insight into its ability to

meet current obligations as well as meet the Library’s ongoing service needs.

At the end of 2020, the Library’s governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$36.9 million, an increase of $4 million from 2019’s $32.9 million figure. The largest portion, $25.1
million (68%), of Library’s governmental fund balance total is attributable to the General Fund. Funds
restricted for debt service on outstanding bonds account for another $5.67 million (15.3%) while the
Library Improvement Reserve Fund (LIRF) accounts for $3.64 million (9.8%). The remaining $2.51
million (6.8%) of the total fund balance is attributable to the Other Non-Major Governmental Funds
(primarily the Rainy Day and Cable TV funds), which in 2020 continue to include only non-major

special revenue funds.

As a measure of the major funds’ liquidity, you can compare the total fund balance to the total fund
expenditures. The General fund expenditures for fiscal year ended 2020 were $26.1 million. Thus, the
General fund balance represents 96% percent of General fund expenditures, an increase of 19% over
2019. When examining both the General and LIRF fund, the fund balances represents 110% (2019
equaled 91%) of the total expenditures of the two funds. Available fund balances in both of these funds
allows the Library to meet all of the cash flow requirements of the organization without having to
utilize short-term borrowing instruments, such as tax anticipation warrants, often required by many
other entities that rely heavily on property taxes as a primary revenue source. In 2020, the General
fund balance increased by $4.77 million (23.4%) which, as has been discussed prior, can be attributable
to revenues continuing to be strong while curtailed operations lead to reduced spending and property
values continuing to rise so that property tax circuit breaker limits were not as impactful as in

prior years.
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The fund balance of the LIRF fund remained unchanged from 2019 as no major capital projects were
initiated during the year that would have required use of the funds. The combined fund balance

of the two funds responsible for paying the debt service on the capital expansion bonds, the Bond

and Interest Redemption fund and the ACPL Bldg Corp Certificate fund balances showed combined
decrease of $625k (9.9%) due to variations in property and other tax collections. Other Non-major
governmental (all special revenue funds) fund balances also decrease $124k (4.7%) mainly from
reduced service revenues in the Cable TV fund as cable franchise fees continue to drop off as more on-

line streaming services are available.

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

There were no changes between the originally approved and final amended total revenue budget of
the General Fund. Actual collections of revenues were lower than officially budgeted in 2020 by $1.7
million or 5.2%. Taxes (which include Property, Excise, and Financial Institutions taxes) came in $1.5
million (5.6%) below budget and is nearly entirely attributable to reduced property tax collections
resulting from the impact of the property tax cap limitations. Intergovernmental revenues, which
represent income tax revenues, came in $453k (9.9%) more than the State estimated budgeted
amount reflecting the one-time supplemental distribution of taxes discussed earlier due to the strong
economy in 2019 resulting increase collections. Charges for Services came in $2325k (51.5%) lower
than anticipated from, as mentioned previously, the pandemic related facility closures and service
limitations impacted a number of revenue sources including, but not limited to, overdue fines and
collection fees, copier/printing revenues, parking receipts, and rental fees. Actual miscellaneous
other revenues came in $418k (54.2%) below budget due primarily to interest earnings on investments
decreasing by $404k under the original budget amount as rates on deposit amounts dramatically

dropped in 2020 in response to the pandemic related economic downturn.

The total final amended General Fund expenditure budget was slightly higher by $28,714 than the
originally adopted $32,476,961 budget and, like prior years, was due to the difference between
purchase commitments outstanding at the end of 2019 versus those existing at the end of 2020. Other
variations were the result of transfers between the Supplies, Services, and Capital (includes library
materials) budget lines to accommodate different spending patterns for the year. Personal Services

budget amounts remained unchanged.
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Actual expenditures came in $6.38 million (19.6%) lower than the final budget. As has been discussed in
previously, the closure of the facilities and curtailed service levels due to the pandemic issues reduced the
actual expenditures in 2020, especially in the public services area. In addition, and as has been explained
in prior year’s reports, in order to accommodate the impacts of the property tax cap legislation,

the library works aggressively at containing costs across the board and as such, the final actual
expenditures in all budget categories reflect these measures. The library’s objective has been to lower
actual expenditures to a level necessary to meet these cap decreases and, to that end, the reduced actual
spending reflects this action. The $3.9 million (18.4%) variance in Personal Service expense is a result of
the increased continued use of funding salary and benefit expenses from grant and gift revenues as well
as, a reduction in the budgeted compensation increases. The $1.4 million variance in the Capital Outlays,
as well as the $318k and $777k variances in the Supplies and Other Services lines, respectively, reflect
the spending reductions implemented in order to match expense spending to actual revenues collected.
As mentioned above, tax caps, while starting to trend more favorably in 2020, continue to reduce actual
revenue collections significantly so, actual expense spending must be similarly reduced in order to
achieve a balanced budget. Historically, the average reduction from property tax caps has been 11.2% for
the Library. Reductions in controllable costs such as programming supplies, computer services, capital

spending, and library material purchases are all utilized in this balancing effort.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The Library’s Primary Government’s capital assets as of December 31, 2020, were
equal to $110.2 million with an accumulated depreciation figure of $47.6 million for a net book value
of $62.6 million. Capital assets include land, buildings and improvements, machinery and equipment,
construction in progress, and library materials. Also included in the capital assets is the Library’s
rare book collection that is considered a non-depreciating asset. The total decrease in the Library’s
capital assets for 2020 was $2.4 million (3.7%), attributable to increases in library materials and other

assets of $2.4 million being offset by increases in depreciation expense on these assets of $4.8 million.
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Allen County Public Library
Capital Assets

2020 2019
Land $ 4,960,142 $ 4,960,142
Rare book collection 994,827 994,827
Buildings and improvements 91,160,256 91,160,256
Machinery and equipment 5,849,920 5,803,065
Library materials 7,261,344 7,632,507
Subtotal 110,226,489 110,550,797
Less: Accumulated depreciation (47,617,784) (45,526,612)
Total 62,608,705 65,024,185

Additional information regarding the Library’s capital assets can be found on page 54 of this report.

Long-Term liabilities. In 2020, the Library’s net total long term liabilities decreased by $6,471,089. At
the end of 2020 the Library’s Primary Government had total bonded debt outstanding of $7,645,000
which was all in the form of first mortgage bonds. The Library is responsible to pay for this debt

with general revenues. Scheduled bond debt service payments reduced the outstanding existing bond
liability total by $5,955,000. The pension liability on the State cost-sharing multiple employer defined
benefit plan is included in long-term liabilities and decreased to $5,790,398 (a $602,256 decrease from
2019). Finally, Compensated Absences is the last component of long-term liabilities included and showed

an increase of $86,167. These three adjustments account for the total change in long-term liabilities.

Allen County Public Library
Long-Term Liabilities

2020 2019
First mortgage bonds $ 7,645,000 $ 13,600,000
Net Pension Liability 5,790,398 6,392,654
Unearned revenue 1,450,110 1,282,533
Compensated absences 891,185 805,018
Total $ 15,776,693 $ 22,080,205

The Allen County Public Library and the associated Allen County Public Library Building
Corporation continues to maintain an Aa3 rating from Moody’s for both general obligation debt and

first mortgage debt.

Additional information on the Library’s long-term debt can be found on pages 55-57 of this report.
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND SUBSEQUENT YEAR’S BUDGETS AND RATES

Signs of economic improvement for Allen County and the State of Indiana were continuing for the first
part of 2020 until the COVID related pandemic impacts to the US economy as a whole dramatically took
a downward turn. However, all news was not bad. Indiana, which is still dominated by manufacturing
instead of service dependent industries weathered the rest of 2020 quite well. In fact, the unemployment
rate for Allen County in December 2020 was 4.1% (3.1% in December 2019) and significantly lower than
the peak of 19.8% which occurred in April of 2020. The Allen County unemployment rate was lower
than the State rate of 4.6% rate at December 31, 2020 and both were lower than the 6.7% rate for the
United States as a whole. It is projected that by the end of 2021, the State of Indiana will continue a
strong rebound and the financial position will be the same as it was at the end of 2019. Per capita income
in Allen County for 2019 was $47,602, a 2.83 growth over 2018’s $46,288 figure. With this growth,
elastic economic factors, such as income taxes, continue to rebound. In addition, housing activities,
such as sales and new construction remain very strong in the region throughout 2020. Because of these
key indicators of the health of the local economy, it is anticipated that revenues, especially tax based, as

well as collection limitations from property tax caps will continue to improve in 2021.

As mentioned in prior reports, because of the State mandated limitations on property tax collections,
the library has made concerted efforts in examining and taking actions to reduce operating costs,
especially with controllable costs such as salaries, benefits, and library materials, in order to meet the
projected losses in property tax collections (estimated to be $2.1 million in 2021). The 2021 General
Fund budget has been developed with these revenue losses and cost reductions in place and the
library anticipates that the final approved property tax levy and rate will increase no greater than

permissible under current State regulations. For 2020, this growth factor is 3.9%.

These factors along with others were considered when preparing the Library’s budget for the 2021

fiscal year.

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Library’s finances. Questions
concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional information
should be directed to the Library’s Chief Financial Officer, 900 Library Plaza, P.O Box 2270, Fort
Wayne, Indiana, 46801-2270.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
December 31, 2020

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Receivables (net of allowances for uncollectibles):
Interest
Taxes
Intergovernmental
Other
Prepaid expenses
Capital assets:
Land and rare books
Other capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Pension related

Liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and withholdings payable
Accrued interest payable
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Due within one year:
First mortgage bonds
Compensated absences
Due in more than one year:
First mortgage bonds payable (net of discount)
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources:
Unamortized gain on refunding

Pension related

Total deferred inflows of resources

Net position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:
Capital projects
Debt service
Perpetual endowment subject to donor stipulations
Perpetual endowment subject to time restrictions
Other purposes

Unrestricted

Total net position

Primary
Government
Governmental
Activities

Component
Unit

$ 43,959,128 §$

1,719,295
1,541,862
201,742
230,061

5,954,969
56,653,736

1,933,305
19,127,040

64,972

110,260,793

21,125,317

1,151,805

684,310
639,183
37,899

5,315,000
148,531

2,302,356

742,654
1,450,110
5,790,398

17,110,441

153,253
1,398,118

1,551,371

54,838,096

3,643,391
5,666,381

2,509,326
26,093,592

10,000,713
2,828,805
1,740,470
6,555,329

$ 92,750,786 $

21,125,317

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
December 31, 2020

Total fund balances for governmental funds $ 36,966,503

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported in the funds.
Those assets consist of :

Land 4,960,142
Rare book collection 994,827
Buildings, net of $39,183,566 accumulated depreciation 51,341,818
Improvements other than buildings, net of $443,446 accumulated depreciation 191,426
Machinery and equipment, net of $5,536,945 accumulated depreciation 312,975
Library materials, net of $2,453,827 accumulated depreciation 4,807,517
Total capital assets 62,608,705

Some of the Library's revenues will be collected after year-end, but are not available soon
enough to pay for the current period's expenditures and therefore, are deferred in the funds. 1,719,295

Some expenses were deferred as assets in the statement of net position and therefore were
not reported in the statement of activities, but were reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds. 230,061

Net pension liability is not paid from current resources and, therefore, is not shown in the
governmental funds. It is recognized as an expenditure when paid. (5,790,398)

Deferred outflows of resources on pension related items are not recognized in the
governmental funds, but are recorded in the statement of net position. 1,151,805

Deferred inflows of resources on pension related items are not recognized in the
governmental funds, but are recorded in the statement of net position. (1,398,118)

An internal service fund is used by the Library to account for the funding and payment of

services associated with group health insurance. The assets and liabilities of the internal

service fund are included in the governmental activities in the statement of net position.

Internal service fund net position is: 5,962,626

Unamortized gains associated with bond refundings are reported as other financing resources
in the year of issue but are deferred in the statement of net position and amortized over the
life of the debt issues. They are included as Deferred inflows of resources. (153,253)

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Balances at December 31, 2020, consisted of :

First mortgage bonds payable net of premium and discounts (7,617,356)
Compensated absences (891,185)
Total long-term liabilities (8,508,541)

Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in governmental funds, but rather is recognized

as an expenditure when due. (37,899)
Total net position of governmental activities $ 92,750,786

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and
Changes in Fund Balances). $ 4,022,030

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the statement of activities
the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.
This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current period.

These changes consist of:

Capital assets 89,546
Library materials 2,303,948
Depreciation expense 4.808,974)
Net effect of capital assets (2,415,480)

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not
reported as revenues in the funds. In 2020 this consisted of deferred tax revenue unavailable. 343,512

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources to govemn-

mental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of
governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is first issued, whereas
certain amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net effect of these
differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items.

During 2020 these consisted of:

Principal payment 5,955,000
Interest expense 92,326
Net effect of long-term debt 6,047,326

Some expenses were deferred as assets in the statement of net position and therefore were
not reported in the statement of activities, but were reported as expenditures in the
governmental funds. 74,134

A net pension obligation is not accrued in the governmental funds, but rather is recognized as
an expenditure when paid. 744,278

An internal service fund is used by the Library to account for the funding and payment of
services associated with group health insurance. The net revenue (expense) of the internal service fund
is reported with governmental activities 1,470,344

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds.

During 2020 this consisted of the change in compensated absences (86,167)
Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement of Activities) $ 10,199,977

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUND
December 31, 2020

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Fund
Group Insurance
Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,149,507
Other receivables 62,362
Total current assets 6,211,869
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accrued group insurance claims payable 249,243
Net position
Unrestricted $ 5,962,626

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

Operating Revenues

Employer contributions
Employee contributions

Total operating revenues

Operating Expenses
Contractual services
Insurance premiums
Medical claims

Total operating expenses

Operating income
Net position - beginning

Net postion - ending

PROPRIETARY FUND
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Fund
Group Insurance

$ 3,600,000
480,191

4,080,191

85,088
213,708
2,311,051

2,609,847

1,470,344

4,492,282

$ 5,962,626

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUND
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Governmental
Activities -
Internal Service
Fund
Group Insurance

Cash flows from operating activities:

Receipts from users $ 4,047,759
Payments to suppliers (2,654,212)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,393,547

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 1,393,547
Cash and cash equivalents, January 1 4,755,960
Cash and cash equivalents, December 31 $ 6,149,507

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Operating income $ 1,470,344

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Increase in assets:

Other receivables (32,431)
Increase in liabilities:

Accrued group insurance benefit payable (44,366)

Total adjustments (76,797)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,393,547

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts Receivable

Total current assets
Liabilities
Accounts payable

Net position

Net Position held in trust for:
Employee activity

FIDUCIARY FUND
December 31, 2020

Custodial
Funds

$ 20,923
38

20,961

13,063

$ 7,898

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUND
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Custodial

Additions Funds
Contributions:

Employees $ 826
Deductions
Employee Activities -

Changes in net position 826

Net position - beginning 7,072
Net position - ending $ 7,898

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Allen County Public Library (Library) (primary government) is a component unit of Allen County.
The primary government was established under the laws of the State of Indiana and is governed by a
seven-member Board of Trustees appointed from various bodies of elected officials. Two trustees are
appointed by the Allen County Commissioners, two are appointed by the Allen County Council, and
two are appointed by Fort Wayne Community Schools. The final trustee is appointed by the remaining
school districts within the Allen County. Those districts are the East Allen County Schools, Northwest
Allen County Schools, and Southwest Allen County Schools.

Besides Allen County officials appointing a majority of the Library’s Board (4 appointments), Allen

County is financially accountable for the Library based upon fiscal dependency as follows:

IC 36-12-14 requires the Library to submit its proposed budget and tax levy to the Allen County
Council if their proposed budget is greater than the six-year average of non-farm personal income
growth. The Allen County Council may reduce or modify but not increase the proposed budget or

tax levy.

Since the Library does not have the ability to complete the above essential events without substantive
approval by Allen County Council, it is fiscally dependent upon Allen County and Allen County is
financially accountable for the Library. Thus, because of the number of trustee appointments and the

fiscal accountability aspects, the Library is considered a component unit of Allen County.

The accompanying financial statements present the activities of the primary government and its
significant component units. The component units discussed below are included in the primary
government’s reporting entity because of the significance of their operational or financial
relationships with the primary government. Blended component units, although legally separate
entities, are in substance part of the government’s operations and exist solely to provide services for
the government; data from these units is combined with data of the primary government. Discretely

presented component units are involved in activities of an operational nature independent from the
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government; their transactions are reported in a separate column in the government-wide financial

statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the government.

Blended Component Unit

ACPL Bldg Corp is a legally separate non-profit corporation and is a significant blended component
unit of the primary government. It was created by the Library for the sole purpose of financing library
buildings and improvements. The ACPL Bldg Corp board members are appointed by the Library Board
of Trustees. The debt of the ACPL Bldg Corp is repaid through lease payments from the Library. The
operations of this organization are being reported as ACPL Bldg Corp Certificate fund (major debt

service fund).

Discretely Presented Component Unit

The Allen County Public Library Foundation, a legally separate non-profit entity, is a significant
discretely presented component unit of the primary government. It was created for the purpose of
accepting and administrating donations on behalf of the Library and to support the programs and
services of the Library. A majority of the Allen County Public Library Foundation’s board members

are appointed by the Library Board of Trustees.

The financial statements of the Allen County Public Library Foundation are presented as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2020.

The financial statements of the individual component units may be obtained from their respective

offices as follows:

ACPL Bldg Corp Allen County Public Library Foundation
900 Library Plaza 900 Library Plaza
P.O. Box 2270 P.O. Box 2270

Fort Wayne, Indiana 46801-2270 Fort Wayne, Indiana 46801-2270
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B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

Government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government.

The effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements except for interfund
services provided and used. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and
intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a
significant extent on fees and charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported
separately from certain legally separate component units for which the primary government is

financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which direct expenses of a given function

or segments are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are clearly identifiable with a specific
function or segment. Program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase,
use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment and
(2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a
particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues

are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary
funds, even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major

individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement
focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial
statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is
incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized in the year
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility

requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon
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as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.
For this purpose, the primary government considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within sixty days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when

a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures related to compensated absences, claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment

is due.

Property taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible
to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are

considered to be measurable and available only when the primary government receives cash.

The primary government reports the following major governmental funds:

The General fund is the primary operating fund. It accounts for and reports all financial resources

not accounted for and reported in another fund.

The Bond and Interest Redemption fund accounts for debt from funds borrowed or advanced for

the purchase or lease of library buildings, improvements, equipment or capital construction.

The Library Improvement Reserve fund (LIRF) accounts for receipts accumulated for the
purpose of anticipating necessary future capital expenditures for the purchase of library building

improvements, equipment or capital construction.

The ACPL Bldg Corp Certificate fund accounts for the debt from funds borrowed for the purchase

of library buildings, improvements, equipment or capital construction.

Additionally, the primary government reports the following fund types:

The internal service (proprietary) fund accounts for receipts and expenditures related to the

partially self-funded health insurance provided on a cost-reimbursement basis.

The custodial fund (fiduciary) reports a trust arrangement under which principal and income

benefit employees. This fund was created to account for employee donations and revenues received
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from vending machines in the staff lounge that are provided by a vendor for the exclusive use of
the ACPL employees and volunteers. These revenues are to be used for purposes such as a staff

picnic, holiday parties, or charitable donations.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-
wide financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s
proprietary fund functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of these

charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues

Amounts reported as program revenues include (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services or privileges provided and (2) operating grants and contributions. Internally dedicated
resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general

revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection
with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
internal service funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for internal
service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on
capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating

revenues and expemnses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the primary government’s

policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities and Net Position or Equity

1. Restricted Net Position

Primary Government:

All restricted net position, as presented in the accompanying financial statements, are restricted due

to enabling legislation.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit:

The restricted net position portion of Perpetual endowment subject to donor stipulations is required to
be retained permanently either by explicit donor stipulation or by the Uniform Prudent Management
of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).

The restricted net position portion of Perpetual endowment subject to time restrictions is subject to a

time restriction under the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA).

2. Deposits and Investments

The Library’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-

term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

State statute (IC 5-13-9) authorizes the primary government to invest in securities including, but not
limited to, the following: federal government securities, repurchase agreements, and certain money
market mutual funds. Certain other statutory restrictions apply to all investments made by local

governmental units.

Investments are stated at fair value. Any changes in the fair value of the investments are reported as

interest revenue in the year of the sale of the investment.

3. Interfund Transactions and Balances

Activities between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding

at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as interfund receivables/payables (i.e., the current and
non-current portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported
as “Due from/to other funds.” All other interfund transactions are reported as “interfund services
provided/used.” Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-

type activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as “internal balances.”

4. Property Taxes

Property taxes levied are collected by the County Treasurer and are distributed to the primary
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government in June and in December. State statutes (IC 6-1.1-17-16) require the Indiana Department

of Local Government Finance to establish property tax rates and levies by December 31. These rates
were based upon the preceding year’s lien date (March 1 in a year ending before January 1, 2016

and January 1 in a year after December 31, 2015). Taxable property is assessed at 100% of the true
tax value (determined in accordance with rules and regulations adopted by the Department of Local
Government Finance). Taxes may be paid in two equal installments that become delinquent if not paid
by May 10 and November 10, respectively. All property taxes collected by the County Treasurer and
available for distribution were distributed to the primary government prior to December 31 of the
year collected. Delinquent property taxes outstanding at year end, net of allowances for uncollectible
accounts, are recorded as a receivable with an offset to deferred inflows of resources since the amounts

are not considered available.

5. Prepaid Items

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items in the government-wide financial statements, but are reported as expenditures in the
governmental fund financial statements.

6. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property and equipment, are reported in the governmental activities

column in the government-wide financial statements.

Capital assets are reported at actual or estimated historical cost based on appraisals or deflated current

replacement cost. Contributed or donated assets are reported at acquisition value at the time received.

Capitalization thresholds (the dollar values above which asset acquisitions are added to the capital
asset accounts), depreciation methods and estimated useful lives of capital assets reported in the

government-wide statements are as follows:

Capitalization Depreciation Estimated
Threshold Method Useful Life

Land All N/A N/A
Buildings $ 5,000 Straight-Line 40 yrs.
Improvements Other Than 5,000 Straight-Line 20 yrs.
Buildings
Machinery and Equipment 5,000 Straight-Line 5yrs.
Library Materials All Composite 3 yrs.
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For depreciated assets, the cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend asset lives are not capitalized. Also, included in the capital assets is the

Library’s rare book collection that is considered a non-depreciating asset.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

7. Compensated Absences

a. Sick Leave — primary government employees earn sick leave at the rate of sixty to eighty hours

per year based on the number of hours worked per year. Unused sick leave may be accumulated to a
maximum of five hundred twenty hours or sixty-five working days for full-time employees. For eligible
part-time employees, unused sick leave may accumulate up to thirteen weeks of the appropriate

current authorized hours. Accumulated sick leave is not paid to employees upon termination.

b. Vacation Leave — primary government employees earn vacation leave at rates from ten days
to twenty-five days per year based upon the length of service, degree qualifications, level of
responsibility, and number of hours worked per year. Vacation leave may be accumulated to a
maximum of one and one-half times the annual amount of vacation for which one is eligible.

Accumulated vacation leave is paid to employees upon termination.

c. Personal Leave — primary government employees earn personal leave at the rates of twelve to
sixteen hours per year based on the number of hours worked per week. At the end of each year unused

personal leave is added to accumulated sick leave.

Vacation leave is accrued when incurred and reported as a liability in the statement of net position.
Only amounts due and payable at year end are included in the fund statements. The General fund is

primarily used to liquidate the liability for compensated absences.

8. Long — Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, statement of net position. Bond
premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line

method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts
during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources.
Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from actual

debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

9. Deferred Inflows/Outflows of Resources

Deferred inflows of resources represent an acquisition of net position that applies to future periods.

Deferred outflows of resources represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods.

10. Fund Balances

The Library adopted the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
54 (GASB 54). The intention of GASB 54 is to provide more structured classification of fund balance
reporting. The reporting standard establishes a hierarchy for fund balance classifications and the

constraints imposed on the uses of those resources. The classifications are as follows:

1) Nonspendable fund balances are those assets that are not likely to convert to a spendable form
because of their form (I.E. inventory supplies) or because legal or contractual requirements dictate
the assets remain intact (I.E. endowment principal amounts). The Library fund financial statements

contain no fund balances that are nonspendable.

2) Restricted fund balances are those fund balances that are subject to externally enforceable legal
restrictions or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. These
restrictions are typically imposed by outside parties, such as creditors through debt covenants or when
the authorization to raise revenues is conditioned upon those revenues being used for a particular
purpose, often through enabling legislation. Other than the Library General Fund, all of the other
funds of the Library are considered to fall into this restricted category. These include the Bond and
Interest Redemption fund and the ACPL Building Corp Certificate fund since they are the primary
debt service funds, the Library Improvement Reserve Fund (LIRF), and the Special Revenue funds

for Gift, Cable Television, Levy Excess, State Technology grants, and the Rainy Day fund. All of these

funds were established by enabling legislation at the State level.
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3) Committed fund balances are those portions of the fund balance that are constrained by limitations
placed upon them by the highest level of decision making, normally the governing body. These
constraints remain binding unless removed by action of the same body and typically must occur before
the close of reporting period. The Library fund financial statements contain no fund balances falling

within the committed classification.

4) Assigned fund balances include those portions of the fund balance that reflect the governments
“intended” use of resources that can be established by the highest level of decision making or by

some other body who has been delegated authority for such decisions. In addition, no formal action

is required to designate assigned portions of the fund balance. Only those amounts representing
encumbrances and commitments relating to library programs in the General fund are classified under
the Assigned classification in the Library fund financial statements. The Board of Library Trustees,
as authorized by State law, has delegated authority to the Library Director to act as their agent in all

purchasing and contracting activities.

5) Unassigned fund balances will only be reported in the Library General Fund. Because the General
Fund is the principal operating fund, there will often be resources in excess of what can be classified in
one of the other four classifications. Those excess resources are presented as the unassigned portion of

the fund balance.

Funds on the Library’s accounting system are assigned one of the five fund balance classifications. If
a fund has resources that are both restricted and unrestricted, then expenditures are applied first to
restricted fund balance and then unrestricted amounts. The Library does not have a formal policy for
its use of unrestricted fund balance amounts; therefore, it considers committed amounts used first,
followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned amounts when expenditures are incurred for

purposes for which amounts in any of those unrestricted fund balance classifications could be used.

11. Significant Encumbrances

The Library utilizes encumbrances in the budgetary accounting and reporting system to represent
legal commitments with an outside party and amounts are reported as a separate classification within
the fund balance to be compatible with the focus on purpose limitations established in the restricted/
committed/assigned hierarchy. As such, encumbered amounts are listed separately in the fund

financial statements as assigned portions of the fund balance of the General fund.
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At December 31, 2020, the following fund included encumbered amounts:

General fund - $441,636

None of these are considered significant encumbrances but rather miscellaneous amounts still

outstanding on various supply, services, or equipment purchases.

II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

On or before August 31, the Director submits to the Board of Trustees a proposed operating budget for
the year commencing the following January 1. Prior to adoption, the budget is advertised and public
hearings are conducted by the Board of Trustees to obtain taxpayer comments. In October of each
year, the Board of Trustees through the passage of an ordinance approves the budget for the next year.
Copies of the budget ordinance and the advertisement for funds for which property taxes are levied are
filed with the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance. The budget becomes legally enacted

after the Director receives approval of the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance.

The primary government’s management cannot transfer budgeted appropriations between object
classifications of a budget without approval of the Board of Trustees. The Indiana Department of
Local Government Finance must approve any revisions to the appropriations for any fund. The legal
level of budgetary control is by object for the General fund and all other budgeted funds.

B. Fund Balances

The constraints placed on the fund balances of the major funds and the nonmajor governmental funds

as of December 31, 2020 are presented below:
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Bond and ACPL Other Non-

General Interest Bldg Corp Major
Fund Redemption LIRF Certificate Funds
Restricted To:
First mortgage bonds % - % 2,586,231 % - % 3,080,150 $ -
Captial projects & equipment - - 3,643,391 - -
Donor designated gifts - - - - 218,375
Cable TV access - - - - 241,038
Intemet connectivity - - - - 12,053
Lew Excess - - - - 23,597
Library programs and facilities - - - - 2,016,263
Total restricted - 2,586,231 3,643,391 3,080,150 2,509,326
Assigned To:
Library programs 441,636 - - - -
Unassigned 24,705,769 - - - -
Total fund balance $ 25,147,405 $ 2,586,231 $ 3,643,391 $ 3,080,150 $ 2,509,326

ITII. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

A. Deposits and Investments

Primary Government:

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not
be returned to it. Indiana Code 5-13-8-1 allows a political subdivision of the State of Indiana to deposit
public funds in a financial institution only if the financial institution is a depository eligible to receive
state funds and has a principal office or branch that qualifies to receive public funds of the political
subdivision. The Library does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At December 31,
2020, the Library had deposit balances in the amount of $43,980,051. The bank balances were insured
by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) or the Public Deposit Insurance Fund, which

covers all public funds held in approved depositories.
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Discretely Presented Component Unit:

1. Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may
not be returned to it. The Library’s discretely presented component unit maintains cash accounts
at local banks and in investment accounts. The cash accounts in the banks are insured by the
FDIC up to $250,000 per bank. The Library’s discretely presented component unit does not have a
deposit policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2020 there was $636,942 of deposits in excess
of the insured amount. At June 30, 2020, the Library’s discretely presented component unit also

had $1,052,407 in investment accounts that are uninsured.

2. Investments

As of June 30, 2020, the Library’s discretely presented component unit had the following

investments:
Investment Maturities (in Years)
Investment Less More
Type Fair Value Than 1 1-2 Than 2

Government sponsored enterprise  $ 3,081,403 % 130,352 $ 241,439 $ 2,709,612

Corporate bonds 299,651 - 68,892 230,759
Corporate stock 10,953,680 10,953,680 - -
Mutual funds 4 792 306 4 792 306 - -
Totals $ 19,127,040 $ 15,876,338 $ 310,331 $ 2,940,371

Fair Value Disclosure of Financial Instruments
Assets and liabilities recorded at fair value in the Statement of Net Position of the component unit
are categorized based upon a hierarchy of the level of judgment associated with the inputs used to

measure their fair value. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are described below:

Level 1 — Inputs to the fair valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets

or liabilities in active markets that the component unit has the ability to access.

Level 2 — Inputs to the fair valuation methodology include quoted prices for similar assets or
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liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; inputs
that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or
other means. If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be

observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs to the fair valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair

value measurement.

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used

need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets and liabilities measured at

fair value.

Investments — Value determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant information

generated by market transactions.

Beneficial Interest in assets held by others — Values are based upon the component units’ proportionate

share of the Community Foundation of Greater Fort Wayne’s pooled investment portfolio.

The following table shows is the fair value, within the hierarchy, of assets and liabilities of the

component unit measured on a recurring basis as of June 30, 2020:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Investments:
Corporate Stock $ 10,953,680 - -
Mutual Funds 4,792,306 - -
Governmental sponsored
enterprises - 3,081,403 -
Bonds - 299,651 -
Beneficial interest - 14,527

$ 15,745,986 $ 3,381,054 % 14,527
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The following is a reconciliation of activity for beneficial interest in assets held by others
measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant unobservable inputs (level 3) for the

year ending June 30, 2020:

Changes in Beneficial Interest in
Assets Held By Others

Beginning Balance - July 1, 2019 $ 14,962
Total Gains and losses included in
earnings:
Investment and interest income 454

Net gains (losses) on investments

Unrealized (819)
Realized 32
Investment fees (102)

Distributions -

Ending Balance - June 30, 2020 $ 14,527

Investment Policies

The Library’s discretely presented component unit has an “Investment Policy Statement” approved
by the unit’s Board of Directors in May 2004 with revisions in November 2010, November 2012,
September 2017, and June 2019. This policy sets the standards for the selection of the unit’s portfolio.
The policy sets the asset allocation as follows: cash and cash equivalents 0% to 5% with a target of 0%;
fixed income 20% to 40% with a target of 30%; alternative investments 0% to 10% with a target of
5%; and equities 40% to 90% with a target of 65%.

Investment Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty
to a transaction, the Library’s discretely presented component unit will not be able to recover the

value of investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Library’s
discretely presented component unit does not have a formal investment policy for custodial credit risk
for investments that are uninsured and uncollateralized. At June 30, 2020, the Library’s discretely
presented component unit held investments in Cozad Asset Management, Inc., Monarch Capital
Management, Inc. and Wells Fargo Advisors, LLC in the amount of $19,141,567.
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Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. The Library’s discretely presented component unit’s Investment Policy Statement does
not limit investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from

increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations. The Library’s discretely presented component unit’s Investment Policy Statement includes
an investment policy for credit risk for investments of A or better. The distribution of securities with

credit ratings is summarized below.

Standard Morningstar Government
and Poor's Risk Sponsored Corporate Mutual
Rating Profile Enterprise Bonds Funds

AAA $ 91,746 % - 3 -
AA+ 1,145,401 - -
AA 369,370 - -
AA- 303,592 - -
AA 10,050 - -
AA2 121,249 - -
AA3 133,380 - -
A+ 154,403 - -
A 298,484 27,401 -
A- 62,356 91,696 -
A1 167,539 - -
A2 20,021 - -
BBB+ - 95,105 -
BBB 49,886 85,449 -
Not Rated 153,926 - 50,089

Low - - 968,659

Below Average - - 887,692

Average - - 1,140,207

Above Average - - 1,266,807

High - - 478,852
Totals $ 3,081,403 $ 299651 $ 4,792,306
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Concentration of Credit Risk

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an organization’s
investment in a single issuer. The Allen County Public Library has an investment policy statement
(IPS) in place that provides a framework for the implementation and oversight of the Foundation’s
investment strategy. These guidelines set forth what is viewed as the best strategy to successfully
accomplish the Foundation’s investment objective, with the least amount of risk taken. The IPS is
specific enough to be meaningful, though flexible for the Foundation to invest through different

market environments.

Although not specifically stated within the IPS, it is best practice that there is no more than 5%
invested in one company, no more than 20% invested in any one industry/market sector, proper
diversification between U.S. and international equities, and that investment in high yield and unrated
bonds should be no higher than 10% of the entire portfolio. These guidelines are continually monitored
by the investment committee of the Allen Country Public Library Foundation. In the event were one

of these to occur within the Foundation’s investment portfolio, proper action would be implemented to

resolve the matter.

Foreign Currency Risk

Foreign currency risk relates to adverse effects on the fair values of an investment from changes
in exchange rates. The Investment Policy Statement includes a formal policy in regards to foreign
currency risk. The foreign currency related to this investment is in international mutual funds and

fixed income instruments and has a fair market value of $391,494.
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B. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as follows:

Primary government

Governmental actiities:
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Rare book collection

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Library materials

Totals

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and equipment
Library materials

Totals

Total capital assets, being
depreciated, net

Total governmental activity
capital assets, net

Beginning Ending

Balance Additions Reductions Balance
$ 4,960,142 % - - $ 4,960,142
994 827 - - 994 827
5,954 969 - - 5,954,969
90,525,384 - - 90,525,384
634,872 - - 634,872
5,803,065 89,546 42,691 5,849,920
7,632,507 2,303,948 2,675,111 7,261,344
104,595, 828 2,393,494 2,717,802 104,271,520
37,100,765 2,082,801 - 39,183,566
414,309 29,137 - 443,446
5,426,769 152,867 42,691 5,636,945
2,584,769 2,544,169 2,675,111 2,453,827
45,526,612 4,808,974 2,717,802 47,617,784
59,069,216 (2,415,480) - 56,653,736
$ 65,024,185 3 (2,415,480) 3 - % 62,608,705

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:
Public services
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C. Interfund Balances and Activity

Interfund Transfers

The primary government typically uses transfers to fund ongoing operating subsidies and to transfer
the portion of state-shared revenues from the general fund to the debt service fund for current-year

debt service requirements. Interfund transfers at December 31, 2020, were as follows:

ACPL
Bldg Corp
Transfer From Certificate

Bond and Interest Redemption $ 6,087,000

D. Long-Term Liabilities

1. First Mortgage Bonds

The ACPL Building Corp issued first mortgage bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and
renovation of the Library’s major capital facilities. First mortgage bonds are not backed by the full

faith and credit of the Library; these bonds are secured by the pledge of mortgaged property.

$30,655,000 First Mortgage Refunding Bonds, Series 2016
due in installments of $2,330,000 to $3,000,000, plus interest
through January 1, 2022; Interest at 1.08% $ 7,645,000

First mortgage bonds debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Year Ended First Mortgage Bonds

December 31 Principal Interest Totals
2021 5,315,000 66,366 5,381,366
2022 2,330,000 12,582 2,342,582
Total $ 7,645,000 $ 78,948 $ 7,723,948
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Unamortized Amounts of First Mortgage Bonds

First mortgage bonds at year end include the following amounts of unamortized bond

premium/discount:

Unamortized Net
Balance at Premium Balance at
December 31 (Discount) December 31

First Mortgage Refunding Bonds, $ 7,645,000 $ (27,644) $ 7,617,356
Series 2016

2. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended December 31, 2020, was as follows:

Beginning Ending Within

Primary Government Balance Additions Reductions Balance OCne Year
Governmental Activities:

1st Mortgage Rfndg Bonds Ser 2016 § 13,600,000 $ - $ 5055000 $ 7,645000 $ 5,315,000

Compensated Absences 805,018 798,991 712,824 891,185 148,531

Unearned Revenue 1,282,533 1,450,110 1,282,533 1,450,110 1,450,110

Net Pension Liability 6,392,654 1,191,442 1,793,698 5,790,398 -
Totals $ 22,080,205 § 3,440,543 §$ 9,744,055 § 15,776,693 § 6,913,641

First mortgage bonds are payable from governmental funds. Compensated absences and all pension

liability liquidations are paid from the General fund.

3.Disclosure

The ACPL Building Corporation bond documents have potential financial consequences that may
result from events of default which includes the Trustee declaring the outstanding principal and
interest due to be immediately payable and the Trustee’s ability to take possession of the mortgaged
and to sell the mortgaged property. The bond documents allow for events of default to be cured.

Certain excerpts from the Bond’s Events of Default and Remedies is disclosed below:

« In the case of the happening and continuance of any of the events of default, the Trustee, by notice

in writing mailed to the Building Corporation, may, and upon written request of Ambac Assurance
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or the registered owners of 25% in principal amount of the Bonds then outstanding under the
Indenture, and the consent of Ambac Assurance and Financial Guaranty Insurance Company,
must, declare the principal of all such Bonds, and the interest accrued thereon, immediately due
and payable. However, the registered owners of a majority in principal amount of all outstanding
Bonds, by written notice to the Building Corporation and to the Trustee and the consent of Ambac
Assurance and Financial Guaranty Insurance Company, may annul each declaration and destroy
its effect at any time before any sale under the Indenture if all agreements with respect to which
default has been made are fully performed and all such defaults are cured, and all arrears of
interest upon all Bonds outstanding and the reasonable expenses and charges of the Trustee, the
Registrar and Paying Agent, its agents and attorneys, and all other indebtedness secured by the
Indenture, except the principal of any Bonds not then due by their terms and interest accrued
thereon since the then last Interest Payment Date, are paid or the amount thereof is paid to the
Trustee for the benefit of those entitled thereto.

Upon the occurrence of one or more events of default, the Building Corporation, upon demand of

the Trustee, must surrender to the Trustee the actual possession of all the Mortgaged Property. In
such event, the Trustee may, but is under no obligation to: (i) hold, operate and manage the same, and
from time to time to make all needed repairs and such extensions, additions or improvements as the
Trustee deems wise; (ii) receive the rents, revenues, issues, earnings, income, profits and proceeds
thereof and out of the same pay all proper costs and expenses of so taking, holding and managing the
same, including reasonable compensation to the Trustee, its agents and counsel, any charges of the
Trustee, the Registrar and Paying Agent under the Indenture, any taxes and assessments and other
charges prior to the lien of the Indenture which the Trustee may deem it wise to pay, and all expenses
in connection therewith; and (iii) apply the remainder of the moneys so received by the Trustee,

first, to the payment of the installments of interest which are due and unpaid in the order of their
maturity, and next, if the principal of the Bonds is due, to the payment of the principal thereof and the
accrued interest thereon pro rata, without any preference or priority whatsoever except as aforesaid.
Whenever all that is due upon the Bonds outstanding under the Indenture and installments of interest
and under any of the terms of the Indenture have been paid, and all defaults made good, the Trustee
will surrender possession to the Building Corporation, its successors or assigns. Upon the occurrence
of any one or more events of default, the Trustee may, if at the time such action is lawful, sell all the
Mortgaged Property as an entirety, or in such parts or parcels as the registered owners of a majority
in principal amount of the Bonds outstanding under the Indenture may in writing request, or in the

absence of such request as the Trustee may determine, at public auction.
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IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The primary government is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; job related illnesses or injuries to employees; medical

benefits to employees, retirees, and dependents; and natural disasters.

The risks of torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; job-related
illnesses or injuries to employees; and natural disasters are covered by commercial insurance from
independent third-parties. Settled claims from these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance
coverage for the past three years. There were no significant reductions in insurance by major category

of risk.

Medical Benefits

The primary government has chosen to establish a risk financing fund for risks associated with
medical benefits to employees, retirees, and dependents. The risk financing fund is accounted for in
the Group Insurance Fund, an internal service fund, where assets are set aside for claim settlements.
An excess policy through commercial insurance covers individual claims in excess of $200,000 per
year. Settled claims resulting from this risk did not exceed commercial insurance coverage for the
past three years. A premium is charged to each fund that accounts for payroll. The total charge
allocated to each of the funds is calculated using trends in actual claims experience. Provisions are

also made for unexpected and unusual claims.

Claim expenditures and liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred
and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated. These losses included an estimate of claims

that were incurred by December 31, 2020, but not submitted for processing.
At December 31, 2020, the total of these liabilities for claims was $249,243. This liability (Accrued

group insurance claims payable) is the Library’s best estimate based on available information. An

analysis of claims activities is presented below:
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Claims and

Beginning Changes in Claim Ending
Year Balance Estimates Payments Balance
2019 299,875 2,891,309 2,897,576 293,608
2020 293,608 2,461,575 2,505,940 249,243

B. Pension Plan

Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Defined Benefit Pension Plan

Public Employees’ Retirement Fund

Plan Description

The Allen County Public Library (primary government) contributes to the Indiana Public Employees’
Retirement Fund (PERF), a defined benefit pension plan. PERF is part of the Indiana Public Retirement
System (INPRS) and is a cost sharing multiple-employer public employee retirement system, which
provides retirement, disability, and survivor benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. All full-time
employees are eligible to participate in the defined benefit plan. State statutes (35 IAC 21-1-1, 35 TAC21-1-
2 and IC 5-10.2-2-11 and 5-10.3) govern through the INPRS Board, most requirements of the system and
give the primary government authority to contribute to the plan. The PERF retirement benefit consists
of the pension provided by employer contributions plus an annuity provided by the member’s annuity
savings account. The annuity savings account consists of member’s contributions, set by state statute

at three percent of compensation, plus the interest credited to the member’s account. The employer may

elect to make the contributions on behalf of the member.
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INPRS administers the plan and issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the plan as a whole and for its participants.

The report is available online at http://www.inprs.in.gov or may be obtained by contacting:

Indiana Public Retirement System
1 North Capitol Street, Suite 001
Indianapolis, IN 46204
Ph. (888) 526-1687

Benefits Provided

The PERF retirement benefit consists of the sum of a defined pension benefit provided by Library
contributions plus the amount credited to the member’s annuity savings account. Pension benefits
vest after 10 years of creditable service. Members are immediately vested in their annuity savings
account. At retirement, a member may choose to receive a lump sum payment of the amount credited
to the member’s annuity savings account, receive the amount as an annuity, or leave the contributions

invested with INPRS.

A member who has reached age 65 and has at least 10 years of creditable service is eligible for normal
retirement and is entitled to 100 percent of the pension benefit component. This annual pension benefit
is equal to 1.1 percent times the average annual compensation times the number of years of creditable
service. The average annual compensation in this calculation uses the highest 20 calendar quarters of

salary in a covered position.

A member who has reached age 60 and has at least 15 years of creditable service is eligible for normal
retirement and is entitled to 100 percent of the pension benefit. A member who is at least 55 years old
and whose age plus number of years of creditable service is at least 85 is entitled to 100 percent of the

pension benefit.
A member who has reached age 50 and has at least 15 years of creditable service is eligible for early

retirement with reduced pension benefits. A member retiring early receives a percentage of the normal

pension benefit, which remains the same for the member’s lifetime.

« 60 -



The PERF plan also provides disability benefits to members. A member who has at least 5 years of
creditable service and becomes disabled while in active service, on FMLA leave, receiving workers’
compensation benefits, or receiving employer provided disability insurance benefits may retire for
the duration of the disability if they have qualified for social security disability benefits and furnish
proof of the qualification. The disability benefit is calculated the same as that for a normal retirement
without reduction for early retirement. Also, under certain circumstances, upon the death in service
of a member, a survivor benefit may be paid to a surviving spouse or surviving dependent children

under the age of 18.
The monthly pension benefits for members in pay status may be increased periodically as cost of living
adjustments (COLA), however, such increases are not guaranteed by statute and have historically been

provided on an “ad hoc” basis. These increases can only be granted by the Indiana General Assembly.

Contributions

The contribution requirements of the plan members and the Library are established and may be
amended by the INPRS Board of Trustees. The required contributions are based on actuarial
investigation and valuation in accordance with IC 5-10.2. The funding policy provides for periodic
employer contributions at actuarially determined rates that, expressed as percentages of annual
covered payroll, are sufficient to fund the pension benefits when they become due. PERF members are
required to contribute 3 percent of their annual covered salary. The Library has elected to make these
contributions on behalf of the employee members. For 2020, the Library was required to contribute an
actuarially determined rate of 11.2 percent of annual covered payroll. The Library’s contribution to
the plan for the year ending December 31, 2020 was $1,132,939.

Actuarial Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2019 valuation of the Public Employee’s Pension Fund
were adopted by the INPRS Board in April, 2015. The total pension liability in the June 30, 2020
actuarial valuation was determined using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods
included in the measurement:
Inflation 2.25%
Salary increases 2.5% to 8.75%
Cost-of-living increases 13 check until 2021, .4% to .6% thereafter
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Actuarial assumptions include two mortality tables (healthy and disabled), rather than healthy
only. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Total Data Set Mortality Tables, with Social
Security generational improvements from 2006 based on the Social Security Administration’s
2014 Trustee Report. Disabled member assumes the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Tables,

with Social Security generational improvements from 2006 based on the Social Security

Administration’s 2014 Trustee Report.

The actuarial assumptions used are based on plan experience from July 1, 2010 through June

30, 2014 and were first used in the June 30, 2015 valuation. The actuarial cost method used for
computing the total pension liability is the Entry Age Normal - Level Percent of Payroll method.
Additionally, a load on final average salary of $400 to reflect unused sick leave accumulated at

termination of employment for active and inactive vested members was added.

The actuarial assumptions and methods are used in the June, 30, 2020 valuation of the Public

Employees’ Retirement Fund resulted in the following assumption changes:

+ The inflation assumption stayed the same at 2.25% per year.

« The future salary increase assumption changed to a range of 2.5% to 8.75%.

 The mortality table for healthy members assumes the RP-2014 Total Data Set Mortality Tables,

with Social Security generational improvements from 2006 based on the Social Security

Administration’s 2014 Trustee Report. Disabled members assumes the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality

Tables, with Social Security generational improvements from 2006 based on the Social Security

Administration’s 2014 Trustee Report.

* The retirement, termination, and disability assumptions were updated based on recent experience.

« The ASA annuitization assumption was that 60% of members are assumed to annuitize their ASA

balance prior to January 1, 2020.

The long term return expectation for the INPRS defined benefit retirement plans has been
determined by using a building block approach and assumes a time horizon, as defined in the

INPRS Investment Policy Statement. A forecasted rate of inflation serves as the baseline for

- 62 -



the return expectation. Various real return premiums over the baseline inflation rate have

been established for each asset class. The long term expected nominal rate of return has been
determined by calculating a weighted average of the expected real return premiums for each
asset class, adding the projected inflation rate, and adding the expected return from rebalancing
uncorrelated asset classes. The target allocation and best estimates of geometric real rates of

return for each major asset class are summarized below:

Long Term Long Term

Target Expected Real

Allocation Rate of Return
% %
Public Equity 22.0 4.4
Private Equity 14.0 7.6
Fixed Income — Ex Inflations Linked 20.0 1.0
Fixed Income — Inflation Linked 7.0 0.5
Commodities 8.0 1.6
Real Estate 7.0 5.8
Absolute Return 10.0 2.9
Risk Parity 12.0 5.5

Total 100.0

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of cash

flows used to determine the discount rate assumed the contributions from employers would be, at a
minimum, made at the actuarially determined required rates computed in accordance with the current
funding policy adopted by the INPRS Board. Projected inflows from investment earnings were
calculated using the long term assumed investment rate of 6.75%. Based on those assumptions, each
defined benefit pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefits to determine the total pension

liability for each plan.

Sensitivity of the Library’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the
Discount Rate

The following represents the net pension liability of the Library calculated using the discount rate

of 6.75%, as well as what their respected net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a
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discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (5.75 percent) or 1-percentage point higher (7.75 percent)

than the current rate:

(5.75%) (6.75%) (7.75%)

Library's proportionate share
of net pension liability $ 9,440,318 $5,790,398 $ 2,733,293

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of

Resources Related to Pensions

As of December 31, 2020, the Library reported a liability of $5,790,398 for their proportionate
share of the net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020,

and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an
actuarial valuation as of that date. The Library’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
was based on wages reported by employers relative to the collective wages of the plan. At June
30, 2020, the Library’s portion was .19171%, which was a decrease of .00171% from its proportion

measured as of June 30, 2019.

For the year ended June 30, 2020, the Library recognized pension expense of $466,327. At June 30,
2020, the Library reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to

pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected
and actual experience $ 102,589 % 77,744
Net difference between projected and actual
investment earnings on pension plan investments 495,565 -
Changes of assumptions - 1,206,477
Changes in proportion and differences between
employer contributions and proportionate share
of contributions - 113,897
Employer contributions subsequent
to the measurement date 553,651 -
$ 1,151,805 $ 1,398,118
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$553,651 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Library
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of their

net pension liability in the year ended December 31, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in

pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:

2021 $ (645,977)

2022 (254,184)

2023 (110,307)

2024 210,504

2025 -
Thereafter -
Total $ (799,964)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

The pension plan’s fiduciary net position has been determined on the same basis of accounting used by
the pension plan. Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in
the separately issued INPRS financial report, which is available online at http://www.inprs.in.gov or

may be obtained by contacting:

Indiana Public Retirement System
1 North Capitol Street, Suite 001
Indianapolis, IN 46204

Ph. (888) 526-1687

Benefit Payment Policies

Pension, disability, special death benefits, and distributions of contributions and interest are
recognized when due and payable to members or beneficiaries. Benefits are paid once the retirement or
survivor applications have been processed and approved. Distributions of contributions and interest
are distributions from inactive, non-vested members’ annuity savings accounts. These distributions

may be requested by members or automatically distributed by the fund when certain criteria are met.
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Valuation of Pension Plan Investments

The pooled and non-pooled investments are reported at fair value. Fair value is the amount at which an
investment could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced

or liquidation sale.

Short-term investments consist primarily of cash, money market funds, certificates of deposits
and fixed income instruments with maturities of less than one year. Short-term investments are
reported at cost, which approximates fair value or, for fixed income instruments, valued using similar

methodologies as other fixed income securities described below.

Fixed income securities consist primarily of the U.S. government, U.S. government-sponsored
agencies, publicly traded debt and commingled investment debt instruments. Equity securities consist
primarily of domestic and international stocks in addition to commingled equity instruments. Fixed
income and equity securities are generally valued based on published market prices and quotations
from national security exchanges and securities pricing services. Securities that are not traded on

a national security exchange are valued using modeling techniques that included market observable
inputs required to develop a fair value. Commingled funds are valued using the net asset value (NAV)
of the entity.

Alternative investments include limited partnership interests in private equity, absolute return,
private real estate and risk parity investment strategies. Publicly traded alternative investments are
valued based on quoted market prices. In the absence of readily determinable public market values,
alternative investments are valued using current estimates of fair value obtained from the general
partner or investment manager on a quarterly or semi-annual basis. Valuation assumptions are based
upon the nature of the investment and the underlying business. Additionally, valuation techniques will
vary by investment type and involve a certain degree of expert judgment. Alternative investments,
such as investments in private equity or real estate, are generally considered to be illiquid long-term
investments. Due to the inherent uncertainty that exists in the valuation of alternative investments,

the realized value upon the sale of an asset may differ from the fair value.

Derivative instruments are marked to market daily with changes in fair value recognized as part of

investments and investment income.
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C. Tax Abatements

The Allen County Public Library has not entered into any tax abatement agreements. However, other
local governmental units have entered into tax abatement agreements that have reduced the Library’s

revenues during 2020. The table below summarizes the taxes that have been abated.

Real Personal Total
Governmental Unit Property Tax Property Tax Abated
Allen County $ 456,761 $ 715,031 $ 1,171,792
Fort Wayne 288,674 177,283 465,957
Grabill 2,768 1,337 4,105
Huntertown 1,462 397 1,859
Leo-Cedanville 202 - 202
Monroeville 813 278 1,091
New Haven 16,613 44,710 61,323
Woodburn 11,882 1,523 13,405
Total - All Units $ 779,175 $ 940,559 $ 1,719,734

No amounts have been received and no amounts are receivable from other governments in association

with the forgone tax revenue.
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D. Deferred Compensation Plans

The Library offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal
Revenue Code Section 457. The Plan, available to all full-time employees, permits employees to

defer a portion of their salary until future years. There are no employer contributions to the Plan.
Participation in the Plan is optional. Only upon terminations, retirement, death, or an unforeseen
emergency is the deferred compensation available to an employee. Federal House Bill 3448 mandated
that, effective January 1, 2000; all existing Internal Revenue Code Section 457 plan assets must be

held in a qualified trust for the benefit of participants and their beneficiaries.

Recordkeeping is provided by Lincoln Retirement Services Company, LL.C. And Lincoln Financial
Group Trust Company, Inc. acts as trustee for the Plan and maintains records on plan-level basis. The
Library utilizes Morningstar Investment Management, LLC as its agent to provide investment advice
regarding the selection and monitoring of the line-up of investment options that is made available to
Plan participants, as well as acting as fiduciary to the Plan for investments. Because these assets are
held by a custodian for the specific benefit of participants and their beneficiaries, they are not reflected

in the financial statements and are free from claims of Library creditors.
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Revenues:
Taxes

Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Personal services

Supplies

Other services and charges
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning

Fund balances - ending

ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

General Fund

Variance

Actual With Final

Budgetary Budget

Budgeted Amounts Basis Over

Original Final Amounts (Under)
26,808,753 $ 26,808,753 $ 25,304,085 $ (1,504,668)
4,571,243 4,571,243 5,024,363 453,120
450,000 450,000 218,250 (231,750)
770,000 770,000 352,415 (417,585)
32,599,996 32,599,996 30,899,113 (1,700,883)
20,883,061 20,883,061 17,030,640 (3,852,421)
797,500 795,879 477,588 (318,291)
6,733,900 6,958,121 6,181,423 (776,698)
4,062,500 3,868,614 2,438,295 (1,430,319)
32,476,961 32,505,675 26,127,946 (6,377,729)
123,035 94,321 4,771,167 4,676,846
16,516,906 16,608,301 20,376,238 -
16,639,941 § 16,702,622 $ 25,147,405 $ 4,676,846
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

December 31, 2020
NOTE 1. BUDGETS AND BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING
The Library follows these procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the budgetary comparison schedules:

A. The Director submits to the Library Board of Trustees (the Board) a proposed operating budget for the fiscal year
commencing the following January 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them.

B. The Library advertises the budget prior to adoption and the Board holds public hearings to obtain taxpayer comments.
C. The budget is approved of each year by the Board through passage of a resolution.

D. Copies of the budget forms, resolutions and advertisements are published on the Indiana Department of Local
Government Finance Gateway website. The budget becomes legally enacted after the Board receives approval from the
Indiana Department of Local Government Finance. The budget resolution as approved by the Indiana Department of
Local Government Finance becomes the Library’s expenditures budget. The Library’s maximum tax levy is restricted
by Indiana Law, with certain adjustments and exceptions. If the advertised budget exceeds the spending and tax limits
of the state control laws, an excess levy can be granted by the Indiana Department of Local Government Finance, upon
appeal by the Library.

E. The legal level of budgetary control (the level at which expenditures may not exceed appropriations without the
governing body’s approval) is by object classification for all funds. The Library’s management cannot transfer budgeted
appropriations between object classifications of a budget, without approval of the Board. Any revisions that alter the
total appropriations for any fund must be approved by the Board and, in some instances, by the Indiana Department of
Local Government Finance and the County Fiscal body (Allen County Council)

F. Formal budgetary integration is required by State statute and employed as a management control device. For 2019, an
annual budget was legally adopted for the following funds:

Major Funds
General Fund
Debt Service Fund:
Bond and Interest Redemption

G. The Library’s budgetary process is based upon GAAP. Appropriations lapse with the expiration of the budgetary
period unless encumbered by a purchase order or contract. Encumbered appropriations are carried over and added to the
subsequent year’s budget.

H. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by the Board and approved by the Department of Local

Government Finance in the regular legal manner.
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MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

GENERAL FUND

The General fund is the general operating fund of the Library. Tax revenues and other receipts that
are not allocated by law or contractual agreement to another fund are accounted for in this fund. The
general operating expenditures of the library are paid from the General Fund.

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS
Used to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the payment of, general long-term debt
principal and interest.

BOND AND INTEREST REDEMPTION — Indiana Code 20-14-3-9 (a)(3) provides that all money
derived from the taxes levied for the purpose of retiring bonds or other evidence of indebtedness,
together with any premium or accrued interest that may be received, shall be receipted into

the Bond and Interest Redemption fund. This fund shall be used for no other purpose than the
payment of indebtedness.

ACPL BUILDING CORPORATION CERTIFICATE — This fund accounts for the activities of

a component unit which receives capital lease payments from the Bond and Interest Redemption
fund for the purpose of paying the principal and interest on First Mortgage bonds and
participation certificates. This fund does not have an annual budget. It is disclosed her to provide
the reader additional information.

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUNDS
Capital Projects funds are used to account for major capital acquisition or construction activities,
particularly if these are financed through long-term debt issues or contributions.

LIRF (LIBRARY IMPROVEMENT RESERVE FUND) — Indiana Code 20-14-3-9-(a)(4)
provides that money may be accumulated for the purpose of anticipated necessary future

capital expenditures such as the purchase of land, the purchase and construction of buildings or
structures, the construction of additions or improvements to existing structures, the purchase
of equipment, and all repairs or replacement of buildings or equipment and shall be deposited
into the Library Improvement Reserve fund. The money so received shall be appropriated and
expended solely for the purposes stated above. The fund is budgeted only when necessary capital
expenditures are required to be paid from the fund. For 2019, the fund was not budgeted because
there were no capital expenditures that were required to be paid from the fund.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OTHER BUDGETED MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For The Year Ended December 31, 2020

Bond and Interest Redemption

Variance
Actual With Final
Budgetary Budget
Budgeted Amounts Basis Over
Original Final Amounts (Under)
Revenues:
Taxes $ 5,290,261 $ 5,290,261 $§ 5,457,990 $ 167,729
Expenditures:
Capital outlay - - - -
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures 5,290,261 5,290,261 5,457,990 167,729
Other financing uses:
Transfers in (out) (6,087,000) (6,087,000) (6,087,000) -
Net change in fund balances (796,739) (796,739) (629,010) 167,729
Fund balances - beginning 3,215,241 3,215,241 3,215,241 -
Fund balances - ending $ 2,418,502 $ 2,418,502 $ 2,586,231 $ 167,729
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NON-MAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS
Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are legally

restricted, or donor designated, to be expended for a specific purpose.

GIFT — This fund accounts for revenue and expenditures related to donations and grants received

by various departments and programs of the Library.

CABLE TV — This fund accounts for revenue and expenditures related to operating the public

access channels and government access channels on the local cable television system.

LEVY EXCESS — This fund accounts for property tax collections for a particular year which
exceed more than 100% of the approved levy.

STATE TECHNOLOGY — This fund accounts for revenue and expenditures related to internet
connectivity being funded through State library grants.

RAINY DAY — This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures relating to transfers of unused

and unencumbered funds allowed under appropriate State statutes.

CARES ACT — This fund accounts for revenues and expenditures relating to funds received in

relation to the COVID-19 pandemic activities.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
LOCATION OF PUBLIC SERVICE FACILITIES
with population (2010 census) by township

EEL RIVER
3,965

BRANCH NAME
Main Library
Aboite
Dupont
Georgetown
Grabill
Hessen Cassel
Little Turtle
Monroeville
New Haven
Pontiac
Shawnee
Tecumseh
Waynedale
‘Woodburn

DPT @
WASHINGTON

33,859

TEC
[ ]

ST. JOSEPH
71,832

ADDRESS (Common Location Reference)
900 Library Plaza, Fort Wayne

5630 Coventry Lane, Fort Wayne

536 East Dupont Road, Fort Wayne

6600 East State Boulevard, Fort Wayne
13521 State Street, Grabill

3030 East Paulding Road, Fort Wayne
2201 Sherman Boulevard, Fort Wayne

115 Main Street, Monroeville

648 Green Street, New Haven

2215 South Hanna, Fort Wayne

5600 Noll Avenue, Fort Wayne

1411 East State Boulevard, Fort Wayne
2200 Lower Huntington Road, Fort Wayne
4701 State Road 101 North, Woodburn

CEDAR CREEK
11,329

SPRINGFIELD

o |2761

GRB

MAUMEE
3,318

ABOITE
30,000

MAI
WAYNE ©

108,119
PON
[ ]

SHW
[

WAY @

JACKSON
1,041

JEFFERSON
2,821

LAFAYETTE
3,633

PLEASANT
4,323

MARION
4,495

MONROE
2,785

[ ]
MON

MADISON
2,722




ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY
STATISTICAL SECTION
(Unaudited)

The statistical section of the Allen County Public Library’s comprehensive annual financial
report presents detailed information as a context for understanding the financial statements,
note disclosures, and supplemental information. This information has not been audited.

CONTENTS PAGE

FINANCIAL TRENDS S1
These tables contain trend information that may assist the reader in assessing the
Library’s current financial performance by placing it in historical perspective.

REVENUE CAPACITY
These tables contain information that may assist the reader in assessing the S5
viability of the Library’s most significant revenue source-property taxes.

DEBT CAPACITY

These tables present information that may assist the reader in analyzing S10
the affordability of the Library’s current level of outstanding debt and

the Library’s ability to issue additional debt in the future.

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

These tables offer economic and demographic indicators that are S13
commonly used for financial analysis and can help in understanding

the Library’s present and ongoing financial status.

OPERATING INFORMATION

These tables contain service indicators that can help in understanding how the S18
Library’s financial status relates to the services the Library provides and the

activities it performs.

SOURCE:
Unless otherwise noted, the information in these table is derived from the annual
financial reports for the relevant year.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Property Tax Rates
Direct and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
pay pay pay pay pay
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
Library Direct Rates
General $ 0.1500 $ 0.1548 $ 0.1600 $ 0.1594 $ 0.1584
Debt Service 0.0296 0.0366 0.0323 0.0447 0.0447
Total direct rates 0.1796 0.1914 0.1923 0.2041 0.2031
County-wide units:
Ft. Wayne-Allen Co. Airport 0.0421 0.0407 0.0456 0.0461 0.0464
County of Allen 0.4958 0.5087 0.5370 0.5414 0.5403
Cities and Towns:
City of Fort Wayne 1.4943 1.5277 1.5674 1.5565 1.5312
City of New Haven 1.1156 1.1630 1.1721 1.1581 1.0893
City of Woodburn 0.6154 0.6617 0.6776 0.6979 0.7193
Town of Grabill 0.9547 0.9216 0.9228 0.9146 0.9061
Town of Monroeville 1.3340 1.4099 1.4806 1.4313 1.3993
Town of Huntertown 0.1517 0.1448 0.1566 0.1882 0.2588
Town of Zanesville 0.3104 0.3142 0.3328 0.3808 0.4060
Town of Leo-Cedarville 0.3737 0.3877 0.3779 0.3741 0.3767
School Districts:
East Allen County 0.8484 0.8943 0.9318 0.9172 0.8698
Ft. Wayne Community 0.9660 0.9527 0.9925 1.0113 0.9772
Northwest Allen County 1.0398 1.0473 1.1195 1.1636 1.3124
Southwest Allen County 0.8638 0.8214 0.8912 0.9283 0.9190
Other special districts:
Public Transport. Corp 0.0615 0.0629 0.0646 0.0640 0.0630
S.W. Allen Fire District 0.1714 0.1661 0.1666 0.1675 0.1726
N.W. Allen Fire District 0.0593 0.0641 0.0682 0.0691 0.0708
New Haven-Adams Twp Parks 0.1768 0.1871 0.1982 0.1987 0.2052
Townships:
Aboite 0.0574 0.0584 0.0645 0.0497 0.0506
Adams 0.2995 0.3592 0.3462 0.3460 0.3463
Cedar Creek 0.0433 0.0451 0.0471 0.0480 0.0490
Eel River 0.0000 0.0001 0.0088 0.0085 0.0084
Jackson 0.0413 0.0410 0.0391 0.0371 0.0359
Jefferson 0.1095 0.1077 0.1118 0.1067 0.1012
Lafayette 0.0000 0.0065 0.0069 0.0071 0.0131
Lake 0.0713 0.0721 0.0728 0.0735 0.0746
Madison 0.1139 0.1192 0.1053 0.1195 0.0671
Marion 0.0704 0.0672 0.0708 0.0704 0.0706
Maumee 0.1139 0.1190 0.1097 0.1221 0.0876
Milan 0.0924 0.0961 0.0976 0.0986 0.0974
Monroe 0.1064 0.1057 0.1020 0.0985 0.0944
Perry 0.0040 0.0047 0.0050 0.0051 0.0052
Pleasant 0.0083 0.0122 0.0138 0.0136 0.0138
Scipio 0.0533 0.0545 0.0501 0.0480 0.0472
Springfield 0.0650 0.0694 0.0734 0.0991 0.1199
Saint Joseph 0.1117 0.1207 0.1278 0.1314 0.1351
Washington 0.1067 0.1385 0.1507 0.1293 0.1260
Wayne 0.14083 0.1442 0.1485 0.1487 0.1433

Source: Allen County Auditor's Office
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2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

pay pay pay pay pay
2015 2014 2013 2012 2011

0.1585 $ 0.1589 $ 0.1565 $ 0.1527 $  0.1486

0.0505 0.0511 0.0502 0.0515 0.0499
0.2090 0.2100 0.2067 0.2042 0.1985
0.0471 0.0477 0.0471 0.0468 0.0447
0.5447 0.5477 0.5404 0.5279 0.5155
1.5106 1.4716 1.3411 1.3274 1.3149
1.0633 1.0633 1.0528 1.0077 1.0055
0.7224 0.7006 0.6873 0.6579 0.6577

0.906 0.8702 0.8685 0.8436 0.7837
1.2939 1.2203 1.2002 1.1551 1.0156
0.2821 0.2787 0.2779 0.255 0.2802
0.3439 0.3491 0.3348 0.3216 0.3199
0.3737 0.376 0.3788 0.3731 0.3655
0.8851 0.9309 0.8833 0.8379 0.8871
1.0123 1.0177 0.9766 0.8527 0.9000
1.3453 1.5042 1.56437 1.4358 1.5043
0.9418 1.0371 1.0196 1.0282 1.0170
0.0628 0.0618 0.0603 0.0582 0.0552
0.1769 0.1749 0.1635 0.1645 0.1623
0.0719 0.0759 0.0780 0.0572 0.0569
0.1833 0.1842 0.1769 0.1734 0.1229
0.0504 0.0511 0.0497 0.0501 0.0526
0.3466 0.3377 0.0364 0.3064 0.3007
0.0497 0.0504 0.0505 0.0508 0.0489
0.0077 0.0086 0.0092 0.0091 0.0083
0.0361 0.0387 0.0377 0.0379 0.0384
0.1034 0.1079 0.1059 0.1043 0.1041
0.0141 0.0148 0.0133 0.0149 0.0018
0.0749 0.0786 0.0808 0.0829 0.0881
0.0873 0.1185 0.1200 0.1182 0.1225
0.0698 0.0729 0.0722 0.0687 0.0721
0.1298 0.1261 0.1418 0.1597 0.1378
0.1151 0.0509 0.0500 0.0498 0.0501
0.0917 0.0962 0.0941 0.0978 0.0990
0.0054 0.0055 0.0057 0.0025 0.0055
0.0133 0.0119 0.0128 0.0133 0.0139
0.0436 0.0482 0.0513 0.0505 0.0518
0.1483 0.1121 0.1499 0.1246 0.1477
0.1163 0.0941 0.1084 0.1137 0.1413
0.1169 0.1256 0.1311 0.1355 0.1190
0.1464 0.1260 0.1402 0.1365 0.1302
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Allen County Public Library
Principal Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2020 2011
Percent of Percent of
Taxable Total Taxable Taxable Total Taxable
Assessed Assessed Assessed Assessed
Principal Taxpayers - Name Valuation (1) Rank Valuation Valuation (2) Rank Valuation
Indiana Michigan Power $ 297,991,920 1 1.8 % $ 141,453,818 4 1.1 %
Parkview Health Systems, Inc 199,806,630 2 1.2 69,133,988 7 0.5
IOM Health Systems 190,406,925 3 1.1 140,197,680 5 1.1
General Motors Corp. 185,458,004 4 1.1 222,923,070 1 1.8
Frontier North Inc.* 176,406,170 5 1.1 155,707,850 3 1.2
GGP-Glenbrook-LLC 123,081,600 6 0.7 200,000,900 2 1.6
Uniroyal BF Goodrich 79,909,070 7 0.5
St Joseph Health System LLC 73,387,580 8 0.4 57,989,120 10 0.5
Canterbury Green Apartments, LLC 71,390,300 9 04 58,530,600 9 0.5
Walmart Stores East LP/RE Bus 58,891,970 10 0.4 80,412,690 6 0.6
IMI Jefferson Pointe LLC 68,430,090 8 0.5
Total of Ten Largest Taxpayers $ 1,456,730,169 9.3 % $1,194,779,806 9.1 %

A Formerly Verizon North, Inc. Includeds Frontier Communications Online & LD services..

(1) Represents assessed valuations for taxes due and payable in 2020 and
includes both real estate and personal property.

(2) Represents assessed valuations for taxes due and payable in 2011.and
includes both real estate and personal property.

Source: Allen County Auditor's Office.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS
Last Ten Years

2020
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

2011

NOTE:
A

Source:

General Fund Debt Service Fund
Tax Tax Tax Tax
Levied Collected (A) % (A) Levied Collected (A) % (A)

$ 24,983,469 $ 23,180,732 92.78% $ 4,930,071 $ 5,038,982 102.21% (B)

24,136,010 21,941,267 90.91% 5,706,576 5,741,767 100.62%
23,339,195 20,994,578 89.95% 4,711,600 4,727,561 100.34%
22,435,583 19,894,753 88.67% 6,291,534 6,289,381 99.97%
21,622,463 19,020,007 87.96% 6,101,794 6,100,006 99.97%
21,073,117 18,413,212 87.38% 6,714,148 6,711,176 99.96%
20,519,174 17,952,579 87.49% 6,598,677 6,586,322 99.81%
20,001,346 17,874,776 89.37% 6,415,767 5,734,347 89.38%
19,456,582 17,615,996 90.54% 6,561,978 5,941,956 90.55%
18,834,988 17,362,672 92.18% 6,324,804 5,807,823 91.83%

Property taxes collected include the portion of prior year delinquencies collected in the current year and
will account for why some years collections are greater than levied. No penalties or interest are included.
GASB Statement #44 has called for a new report on collections that breaks down the collection figures
between current and prior years. At the time of CAFR production, this information was unavailable

from the County Auditor's Office.

Property taxes for all units of local government are collected by the County Treasurer and
distributed to the units by the County Auditor.

Starting in 2008, property tax collection limitations were inacted that capped the total amount a property
owner would pay in property taxes to 1% to 3% of the assessed value depending on the type of property.
These "cap" reductions appiled to all property tax supported funds. However, starting in 2014, the State
legislature removed debt service funds from being subject to any property tax cap loss allocation in order
to ensure that all debt committments could be paid for within those funds. Those amount previously
incurred by the debt service funds are redistributed over the remaining property tax supported funds. In the
case of the Library, the only other property tax supported fund is the General Fund,

Allen County Auditor's Office
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Years
(amounts expressed in thousands, except per capita)

2019
2019
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
2013
2012

2011

NOTE:
(A)

General
Bonded
Debt *

$ 7,617
13,559
19,430
25,241
31,519
36,607
41,673
46,574
49,416

53,5697

Less: Amounts Total
Available in Debt Primary
Service Funds ® Government
$ 5666 $ 1,951
6,292 7,267
6,137 13,293
7,110 18,131
6,609 24,910
6,562 30,045
5,830 35,843
5,272 41,302
5,604 43,812
5,831 47,766

Percentage of
Actual Taxable

Value € of

Property

0.012%

0.047%

0.091%

0.129%

0.182%

0.226%

0.278%

0.323%

0.344%

0.377%

Per
Capita D

$ 5.10

19.16

35.41

48.62

67.25

81.54

98.01

113.78

121.56

133.30

General bonded debt includes all general obligation debt as well as other bonded debt
financed with any general governmental resources. For this schedule, it includes all
general obligation bonds and first mortgage bonds, including all premiums and discounts.

This includes resources that are restricted to repaying debt principal.

See Schedule S-5 for property value data.

See Schedule S-13 for population data.
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ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Last Ten Years

Year

2020

2019

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

2013

2012

2011

NOTE:
A

Personal
Income Per Capita Unemployment
Population A (Thousands) B Personal Income °© Rate
382,187 N/A N/A 41 %
379,299 $ 18,055,369 $ 47,602 31 %
375,351 17,374,174 46,288 3.2
372,877 16,602,299 44,525 33
370,404 15,791,276 42,633 4.3
368,450 15,301,020 41,528 4.3
365,701 14,531,265 39,712 55
363,014 13,634,727 37,560 6.0
360,412 13,469,114 37,371 8.2
358,327 12,612,682 35,689 8.6

2010 population is actual U.S. Census count. All other years are intercensenal
estimates. Source: U.S. Census Bureau and Indiana Business Reseach Center.

2019 Personal Income data was unavailable at the time of production.
Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis.

Source: U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.& StatsAmerica
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Allen County Public Library

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2020 2011
Percent of Percent of
Total Total
Principal Employers - Name Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
Parkview Health Systems 7,858 1 4.2 % 4,710 1 2.6 %
General Motors - Truck & Bus Group 4,200 2 2.3 3,610 4 2.0
Lutheran Health Network 3,898 3 21 4,301 2 2.4
Fort Wayne Community Schools 3,600 4 1.9 4,159 3 2.3
Lincoln Financial Group 1,954 5 1.1 1,983 6 1.1
The City of Fort Wayne 1,888 6 1.0 2,003 5 1.1
Sweetwater Sound, Inc 1,714 7 09
BF Goodrich 1,640 8 0.9 1,580 8 0.9
Frontier Communications * 1,355 9 0.7 1,400 9 0.8
Allen County Government 1,305 10 0.7 1,605 7 0.9
Indiana Purdue Fort Wayne 1,255 10 0.7
Total of Ten Largest Taxpayers 29,412 15.9 % 26,606 15.0 %

(A) Formerly Verizon North, Inc.

Source: Greater Fort Wayne Chamber of Commerce, the Bureau of Labor Statistics, ¢ StatsAmerica.
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Allen City of
County Fort Wayne
2010 Population: 355,329 253,691
By Sex:
Male 173,221  48.7% 122,783
Female 182,108 51.3% 130,908
By Race:
White 281,653 79.3% 186,763
Black 41,618 11.7% 39,085
American Indian, Eskimo, or Aleut 1,246 0.4% 939
Asian or Pacific Islander 9,910 2.8% 8,533
Other race 10,455 2.9% 9,441
Two or more races 10,447 2.9% 8,930
By Hispanic Origin:
Mexican 17,596 5.0% 15,545
Puerto Rican 1,119 0.3% 939
Cuban 226 0.1% 174
Other Hispanic 4,152 1.2% 3,542
Not of Hispanic Origin 332,236 93.5% 233,491
2010 Income Data
Family Income in 2009:
Less than $10,000 3,694 41% 3,517
$10,000 to $14,999 2,913 3.2% 2,757
$15,000 to $24,999 7,183 8.0% 6,209
$25,000 to $34,999 9,132 10.2% 8,134
$35,000 to $49,999 13,066 14.6% 10,953
$50,000 to $74,999 21,846 24.3% 17,192
$75,000 to $99,999 14,424 16.1% 10,777
$100,000 to $149,999 12,023 13.4% 8,844
$150,000 to $199,999 2,813 3.1% 1,982
$200,000 or more 2,685 3.0% 2,000

NOTE

ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Miscellaneous 2010 Census Data *

(A) The City of Fort Wayne data is a subset of Allen County data.

Source: Allen County Public Library as extracted from the 2010 US Census
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3.7%
3.5%

6.1%
0.4%
0.1%
1.4%
HH#H#H#H

4.9%
3.8%
8.6%
HHHH#H
#tH#H
HitH##
HHH##
HHH#H
2.7%
2.8%

City as
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71.4%

70.9%
71.9%

66.3%
93.9%
75.4%
86.1%
90.3%
85.5%

88.3%
83.9%
77.0%
85.3%
70.3%

95.2%
94.6%
86.4%
89.1%
83.8%
78.7%
74.7%
73.6%
70.5%
74.5%



ALLEN COUNTY PUBLIC LIBRARY

Age Distribution by Township for Allen County, Indiana

Age ranges: 0-4 5-9 10-14
Townships
Aboite 2,175 2,853 3,117
Adams 2,604 2,424 2,445
Cedar Creek 796 1,122 1,238
Eel River 198 233 294
Jackson 32 41 39
Jefferson 104 158 162
Lafayette 202 266 277
Lake 126 142 150
Madison 103 140 144
Marion 207 233 258
Maumee 204 196 216
Milan 358 399 339
Monroe 114 111 130
Perry 2,252 2,625 2,638
Pleasant 215 226 259
St.Joseph 4,992 4,752 4,819
Scipio 24 17 32
Springfield 436 451 433
Washington 2,731 2,270 2,145
Wayne 8,651 8,146 7,349
TOTAL 26,524 26,805 26,484
Above data presented as percents for each township
Aboite 6.08% 7.98% 8.72%
Adams 8.18% 7.62% 7.68%
Cedar Creek 6.33% 8.93% 9.85%
Eel River 5.48% 6.45% 8.14%
Jackson 6.35% 8.13% 7.74%
Jefferson 4.93% 7.49% 7.68%
Lafayette 6.02% 7.93% 8.26%
Lake 5.48% 6.17% 6.52%
Madison 5.82% 7.91% 8.13%
Marion 5.37% 6.04% 6.69%
Maumee 7.79% 7.48% 8.24%
Milan 9.55% 10.64% 9.04%
Monroe 5.92% 5.76% 6.75%
Perry 7.72% 9.00% 9.05%
Pleasant 6.49% 6.82% 7.82%
St.Joseph 6.91% 6.58% 6.67%
Scipio 5.80% 4.11% 7.73%
Springfield 10.03% 10.37% 9.96%
Washington 7.57% 6.29% 5.94%
Wayne 8.33% 7.85% 7.08%
TOTAL 7.46% 7.54% 7.45%

Source: U.S. Census Bureau and American Community Survey
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147
239
158
155
287

184
325
130
2,125
243

5,215
37
365
2,215
7,662

26,256

7.46%
8.10%
9.57%
8.06%
5.95%

6.97%
7.13%
6.87%
8.75%
7.44%

7.02%
8.67%
6.75%
7.29%
7.34%

7.22%
8.94%
8.39%
6.14%
7.38%

7.39%

20-24

1,356
1,936
518
188
17

95
157
127

94
232

177
242
115
1,064
138

5,764
27
250
2,753
8,130

23,380

3.79%
6.08%
4.12%
5.20%
3.37%

4.50%
4.68%
5.52%
5.31%
6.01%

6.76%
6.46%
5.97%
3.65%
4.17%

7.98%
6.52%
5.75%
7.63%
7.83%

6.58%

25-34 35-44 45-54
3,601 5,038 5,790
3,763 4,086 4,336
1,006 1,817 2,079

333 486 644
59 65 73
194 245 341
317 459 597
229 296 430
161 234 278
330 430 722
313 307 394
366 445 461
196 253 288
3,352 4,537 4,385
369 417 527
10,029 8,613 9,303
35 38 80
527 523 518
5,470 4,531 5,008

16,159 12,980 13,960

46,809 45,800 50,214

10.07% 14.09% 16.19%

11.83% 12.84% 13.63%
8.00% 14.46% 16.54%
9.22% 13.46% 17.83%

11.71% 12.90% 14.48%
9.20% 11.62% 16.17%
9.45% 13.69% 17.80%
9.95% 12.86% 18.69%
9.09% 13.21% 15.70%
8.55% 11.15% 18.71%

11.95% 11.72% 15.04%
9.76% 11.87% 12.30%

10.17% 13.13% 14.95%

11.50% 15.56% 15.04%

11.14% 12.59% 15.91%

13.88% 11.92% 12.88%
8.45% 9.18% 19.32%

12.12% 12.03% 11.91%

15.16% 12.55% 13.88%

15.57% 12.50% 13.45%

13.17% 12.89% 14.13%



55-59 60-64
2,646 2,174
1,990 1,563

861 628
298 245
43 33
152 136
285 203
190 134
144 109
312 290
172 128
212 174
123 102
1,836 1,541
256 207
4,584 3,915
36 33
218 208
2,433 1,941
5,857 4,508

22,648 18,272
7.40% 6.08%
6.25% 4.91%
6.85% 5.00%
8.25% 6.78%
8.53% 6.55%
7.21% 6.45%
8.50% 6.05%
8.26% 5.82%
8.13% 6.15%
8.09% 7.52%
6.56% 4.89%
5.65% 4.64%
6.38% 5.29%
6.30% 5.28%
7.73% 6.25%
6.35% 5.42%
8.70% 7.97%
5.01% 4.78%
6.74% 5.38%
5.64% 4.34%
6.37% 5.14%

65-74 75-84
2,358 1,422
2,122 1,378

761 375
236 122
51 15
200 137
239 83
167 115
95 81
321 185
197 97
266 121
181 102
1,747 806
286 120
4,802 3,559
16 29
259 116
2,346 1,625
5,246 3,510

21,896 13,998
6.59% 3.98%
6.67% 4.33%
6.05% 2.98%
6.53% 3.38%

10.12% 2.98%
9.48% 6.50%
7.13% 2.47%
7.26% 5.00%
5.36% 4.57%
8.32% 4.80%
7.52% 3.70%
7.10% 3.23%
9.39% 5.29%
5.99% 2.76%
8.64% 3.62%
6.65% 4.93%
3.86% 7.00%
5.96% 2.67%
6.50% 4.50%
5.05% 3.38%
6.16% 3.94%
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85+

566
593
166
44
6

1,898
10

45
624
1,645

6,243

1.58%
1.86%
1.32%
1.22%
1.19%

1.80%
0.89%
1.61%
1.86%
1.32%

1.34%
1.09%
4.26%
0.86%
1.48%

2.63%
2.42%
1.03%
1.73%
1.58%

1.76%

Total

35,765
31,816
12,570
3,612
504

2,109
3,354
2,301
1,771
3,858

2,620
3,749
1,927
29,158
3,312

72,245
414
4,349
36,092
103,803

355,329

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%

100.00%

% of
County

10.1%
9.0%
3.5%
1.0%
0.1%

0.6%
0.9%
0.6%
0.5%
1.1%

0.7%
1.1%
0.5%
8.2%
0.9%

20.3%
0.1%
1.2%

10.2%

29.2%

100.0%
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